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REQUIREMENTS AND PROCEDURE FOR VOTING AND PARTICIPATION  
IN THE 2023 ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING OF 

ASIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER- AKLAN INC. 
 
 
Asia Pacific Medical Center-Aklan will once again conduct a virtual 2023 Annual Stockholders’ 
Meeting (ASM) (“Meeting”) on August 31, 2023, Thursday at 9:00AM. The virtual 2023 ASM 
will be conducted via Zoom Teleconference by accessing the Zoom Webinar Link to be 
provided via email to eligible shareholders.  
Stockholders of record as of 31, July 2023, are entitled to participate and vote in the 2023 
ASM. 
 
The following procedures and requirements provide the ways in which the Company’s 
stockholders can participate and vote in the 2023 ASM. 
 
 

I. VOTING BY PROXY 
1. Download and fill out the appropriate PROXY FORM.  

2. Follow the instructions on how to cumulate or allocate votes in the election of 
directors. 

3. The Chairman of the meeting, by default, is authorized to cast the votes pursuant to 
the instructions in the proxy form. 

4. Send a scanned copy of the executed proxy through email to 
compliance@apmcaklan.com. 

5. Deadline for submission of proxies is on 21 August 2023 at 1700H to give time for 
the Proxy Validation and Tabulation Committee (“Committee”) to review and 
validate the proxies received in accordance with the Company’s Amended By-Laws. 

NOTA BENE: Considering the extraordinary circumstances in relation to COVID-19 
pandemic and to accommodate shareholders from different locations in the 
Philippines and around the world, the Corporation shall allow electronic signature 
for the required documents, as applicable. Notarization requirement shall also be 
dispensed with at this time. However, the Corporation reserves the right to request 
additional information, and original signed and notarized copies of these documents 
at a later time. 

 
II. ELECTRONIC VOTING OR VOTING IN ABSENTIA 

1. Stockholders as of 31 July 2023, have the option of electronic voting in absentia for 
the Election of Directors and on the matters in the Agenda after complete 
registration and successful validation.  

2. To access the online voting portal, stockholders are required the following 
information to the corporation by informing the Office of the Corporate Secretary 
through an email with subject titled- “2023 ASM ONLINE REGISTRATION” at 
compliance@apmcaklan.com for the registration: 

mailto:compliance@apmcaklan.com
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a. Complete Name 
b. Electronic Mail (email) Address (active and primary) 
c. Mobile Contact Number (active and primary) 
d. Birthdate 
e. Tax Identification Number 

 
NOTA BENE: Incomplete or inconsistent information may result in an unsuccessful 
registration. As a result, Stockholders will not be allowed to vote electronically in 
absentia but may still vote through the Chairman of the meeting as proxy, by 
submitting a duly accomplished proxy form, on or before 1700H of 21 August 2023. 

3. The verification and validation of the submitted information will be completed by 

the Office of the Corporate Secretary. Once validated, the Stockholder will receive 

confirmation on their successful registration and at the same time their username 

and password to be used during their login. The email will also include the Agenda 

of the Meeting, Profile of the Nominees, and other pertinent documents. The four 

(4)-digit Verification Code will be sent through their registered email once the 

Stockholder has successfully logged in the ASM Online Voting Portal. The verification 

code will be specific to every Stockholder and will be used to further access the 

online voting portal. 

4. For confidentiality purposes, the shareholders upon registering to the ASM Portal 

authorizes the Asia Pacific Medical Center- Aklan Inc., to use, collect and process 

information for legitimate purposes specifically for the 2023 Annual Stockholders’ 

Meeting including the Election of the 2023 Board of Directors and to allow the 

authorized personnel to process the information. 

5. To access the ASM Online Voting Portal, Stockholders must key in their USERNAME 
using their first and last name, no middle initials or space. The PASSWORD will 
require the first nine (9) digits of the stockholder’s Tax Identification Number (TIN). 

6. A four (4)-digit verification code shall then be sent to the registered email address of 
the Shareholder to be able to proceed as mentioned above. This process may take a 
couple of minutes depending on the email server. 

7. Online voting portal shall be open on 16 August 2023 at 8AM until 5PM of 25 August 
2023. Votes casted on these dates shall be tabulated and presented during the 2023 
ASM as Official and Partial Results. The deadline for submission for registration to 
vote in absentia is on 15 August 2023. Beyond this date, Stockholders may no longer 
avail of the option to vote in absentia. 

8. Stockholders who have not registered in the Online Voting Portal may still attend the 

2023 ASM remotely and will be allowed to vote during the Meeting provided that 

they notify the Company by email to compliance@apmcaklan.com from August 16-

18, 2023 of their intention to participate in the Meeting by remote communication. 

Unregistered Stockholders must provide the necessary information stated in Section 

mailto:compliance@apmcaklan.com
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II.2 of this document to complete their registration for login and to cast their votes. 

Upon verification and validation by the Office of the Corporate Secretary, an email 

will be sent to the Stockholders providing their username and password to be used 

during their login. 

9. Votes casted in the online voting portal from 8AM of August 16, 2023 until 5PM of 
August 25, 2023 will be tabulated and presented during the 2022 ASM as Official and 
Partial Results. On the other hand, votes casted on the day of the Meeting during the 
2023 ASM through ASM Online Voting Portal and after the adjournment of the 
Meeting together with the votes received through proxy shall be tabulated and 
included in the Minutes of the 2023 ASM. 

10. The ASM Online Voting Portal contains all the items listed in the Agenda as indicated 
in the Notice of the Meeting. The registered Stockholders may vote as follows: 

a. For items other than the election of directors, stockholders have the option to 
vote: In Favor of (YES), Against (NO), or Abstain. 

b. For the Election of Directors, there will be twelve (12) Regular Directors and 
three (3) Independent Directors to be elected. A shareholder owning 1 block of 
10 shares has a total cumulative vote of 150 votes. A stockholder has the option 
to vote his shares for all nominees, not vote for any nominees, or vote for some 
nominees only, in such number of shares as the stockholder prefers, provided 
that the total number of votes cast shall not exceed the number of shares 
owned, multiplied by the number of directors to be elected. The system will 
automatically compute the total number of votes the stockholder is allowed to 
cast, based on the number of shares the stockholder owns.  

11. Once voting on the agenda items is finished, the registered Stockholder can proceed 
to submit the accomplished form by clicking the ‘SUBMIT’ button. After the ballot 
has been submitted, the stockholder may no longer change his vote. The Online 
Voting Portal will prompt the Stockholder to confirm the submission of the ballot. 
The votes casted in absentia will have equal effect as votes casted in person or by 
proxy. 

12. Thereafter, the ASM Portal System will send a confirmation email to the stockholder 
once his/her votes have been recorded. If the registration cannot be verified due to 
lacking, incomplete, or unreadable documents or information, the stockholder will 
be notified through an email from the ASM Portal. The Company shall send a 
subsequent email to inform the stockholder of the actions or documentations 
needed to complete the registration.  

13. Votes will be counted by the Voting Count System integral to the application and 

canvassed by the Proxy Validation and Tabulation Committee of the Corporation, in 

the presence of the Corporate Secretary. The Committee shall convene on 7:00 PM 

25 August 2023 for partial canvassing of votes made through the online voting portal 

and votes casted in person or by proxy. Immediately after convening, the Board of 

Canvassers with the assistance of the Information Technology (IT) Team shall enter 
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the password to print the results of the online election. The results shall be placed in 

a sealed envelope. The Committee shall present to everyone present that the 

envelope received is sealed. The Committee shall then open the sealed envelope and 

read the results of the online election. The Committee shall sign the canvassed 

results and endorse the same to the Corporate Secretary. In no case shall the results 

be accessed prior to the Canvassing of results.  

III. ATTENDANCE IN THE 2023 ASM BY REMOTE COMMUNICATION 
 
1. Stockholders as of 31 July 2023 (“Stockholders”) who registered in the Online Voting 

Portal can also participate in the 2023 ASM on 31 August 2023 by remote 
communication by accessing the Zoom webinar link to be provided via the 
Stockholders’ registered email. 

2. Stockholders who have not registered in the Online Voting Portal may still attend the 
2023 ASM remotely. Unregistered Stockholders, however, are requested to notify 
the Company by email to compliance@apmcaklan.com by 16-18 August 2023 of 
their intention to participate in the Meeting by remote communication. For 
validation purposes, unregistered Stockholders shall provide the Company the 
information prescribed in Section II.2 of this document. Once validated, the 
Stockholder will receive confirmation on their successful registration, their username 
and password to be used during their login. A four (4)-digit verification code, specific 
to every Stockholder, will then be sent to the Stockholders’ registered email and will 
be used to further access the online voting portal.  

3. Only those Stockholders who have notified the Company of their intention to 

participate in the Meeting by remote communication will be allowed to vote on the 

day of the Meeting and will be included in determining quorum unless they register 

in the Online Voting Portal or authorize the Chairman to vote as proxy, by 16 August 

until 18 August 2023, 5PM. 

4. Stockholders participating by remote communication will not be able to vote unless 

they register in the Online Voting Portal or authorize the Chairman to vote as proxy, 

by 16 August until 18 August 2023, 5PM. 

5. Stockholders may send questions or remarks through prior to at the Company’s 

email compliance@apmcaklan.com or during and until the adjournment of the 

Meeting through the 2023 Zoom Meeting Chatbox.  

6. The proceedings during the 2023 ASM will be recorded. A link to the recorded 

webcast of the Meeting will be posted on the Company’s website and social media 

within 5 days from the date of the meeting. Stockholders shall have two (2) weeks 

from posting to raise to the Company any issues, clarifications and concerns on the 

Meeting conducted. 

mailto:compliance@apmcaklan.com
mailto:compliance@apmcaklan.com
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For more questions and clarifications, stockholders may contact: 
The Office of the Corporate Secretary: +639178146042/ +639190963082/ 036-2632320 

 
 

PROCEDURE FOR ONLINE ELECTION SYSTEM   
IN THE 2023 ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING OF  

ASIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER- AKLAN INC. 
 
 

STEP O. PRELIMINARIES 

Please make sure that you have sent the necessary information, namely: Complete Name, Active Email 
Address, Active and Primary Mobile Number, Birthdate and Tax Identification Number to the Office of 
the Corporate Secretary via email with subject titled- “2023 ASM ONLINE REGISTRATION” at 
compliance@apmcaklan.com for registration. The above personal information will be used for your 
two-step authentication.  

Once the verification and validation of the submitted information has been completed by the Office 

of the Corporate Secretary, the Stockholder will receive confirmation on their successful registration 

and at the same time their USERNAME and PASSWORD to be used during their login. The email will 

also include the Agenda of the Meeting, Profile of the Nominees, and other pertinent documents. The 

four (4)-digit Verification Code will be via email once the Stockholder has successfully login in the ASM 

Online Voting Portal. The verification code will be specific to every Stockholder and will be used to 

access the online voting portal. 

 

STEP 1. LOGIN 

Visit the Company’s website ( http://www.asiapacificmedicalcenter-aklan.com/vote) to login. You 
should see the page below. Provide your username and password from the email sent by the Company 
and click “LOGIN”. 
 

mailto:compliance@apmcaklan.com
about:blank
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You will then be prompted with the following page where you will have to choose the action that you 
want to perform. To cast a vote, click the “VOTE” button. This will trigger the verification page. 

 

STEP 2. VERIFICATION 

After choosing the “VOTE” button, the following page will be displayed: 
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The page will ask for the 4-digit verification code sent to your registered email. Please open your email 
and check for the message from APMC Aklan < no-reply@acemcaklan.com>. It should be in your inbox, 
but if not found, kindly check your SPAM FOLDER. Here’s how the email should look like: 

 
 
 
Enter the number 4-digit verification number provided to the boxes on the voting portal, then click 
“PROCEED”. If you did not receive an email, please click “RESEND EMAIL” button. 
 

 
 
 
HOW TO OPEN YOUR SPAM FOLDER 
 
The Spam folder is usually hidden. You may open it by clicking on “MORE” button (1) from the list on 
the left side of your mail. Scroll down and you will see the Spam Folder (2). Click it and check the 
message sent by APMC Aklan < no-reply@acemcaklan.com> (3). From there, you may click “REPORT 
NOT SPAM” button so that you will not have problems receiving emails from the APMC-Aklan again. 
 
 

mailto:no-reply@acemcaklan.com
mailto:no-reply@acemcaklan.com


 

8 
                  Office Address: 2nd Floor, Aklan Polyclinic and Drugstore, Goding Ramos Street, Kalibo, Aklan 5600   

Principal Business Address: Judge Martelino Road, Andagao, Kalibo, Aklan 
Tel: +63(036) 268-2320/ +63917-814-6042/ asiapacificmedicalcenter.aklan@yahoo.com / 

http://www.asiapacificmedicalcenter-aklan.com/ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STEP 3. VOTING SELECTION 

You will then be prompted to choose on which item you will cast your vote: BOD Election or Agenda. 
Proceed to Step 4a to vote for BOD Election or Step 4b to vote or the Agenda. 

 

 

STEP 4A. VOTING FOR ELECTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

There are two (2) ways of casting your vote. The default one, as shown below, is when your votes will 
be equally divided to all your selected candidates. 
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However, if you want to give a specific number of votes to your chosen candidate, please click on the 
link pointed by the arrow at the image above. Doing this will prompt the show the page below. 
 
 
 

 
After selecting the voting method that you want to use, please click the “START” button. 
 
 
 
VOTING METHOD 1: EQUALLY DIVIDED VOTES 
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Clicking the “START” button will display the page below: 

 
To select a candidate, simply click on the “VOTE” button. In doing that, the button will change to 
“SELECTED”. After selecting all your candidates, please click on “NEXT” and you will be brought to the 
summary page to review your vote. 
 
 
 
 
 
VOTING METHOD 2: GIVE SPECIFIC VOTES 
 
Clicking the “START” button will display the page below: 
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To give points to a candidate, you may use the buttons provided or you can also directly enter your 
preferred number of votes. Click “NEXT” button to review your votes. 
 
 

STEP 4A. SUMMARY & FINALIZING OF VOTES FOR ELECTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Clicking the “NEXT” button will display the summary page as shown below: 
 

 
Please click the “BACK” button if there are changes that you want to make or click “SUBMIT” if your 
votes are final and you do not want to change anything. 
 
 
 
 
Upon clicking the on the “SUBMIT” button and you still have remaining votes to cast, the system will 
ask for a confirmation to continue. You may click on “OK” to proceed, or “CANCEL” to make changes 
to your votes. 
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If you have consumed all your votes, or if you click on “OK” button during the confirmation, the system 
will bring you to the page below, completing the voting process. 

 
 
 
 
 

STEP 4B. VOTING FOR AGENDA 

You will be presented with the instructions first. Click “START” button to begin.  
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After clicking the “START” button, the page below will be displayed: 

 
Choose your vote for each agenda item, then click “NEXT” button. The summary page will then be 
displayed. 
 
 
 

STEP 5B. SUMMARY & FINALIZING OF VOTES FOR AGENDA 

Clicking the “NEXT” button will display the summary page as shown below. Click the “BACK” button 
to change your vote, or the “SUBMIT” button to finalize it. 
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After the confirmation, the system will bring you to the page below, completing your voting process. 
 
 

 
For more questions and clarifications, stockholders may contact: 

The Office of the Corporate Secretary: +639178146042/ +639190963082/036-2632320 
 



 

 

“ANNEX B” 

 

2022-2023 BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ & EXECUTIVE OFFICERS’ PROFILE 
 

The Asia Pacific Medical Center (APMC) – Aklan Inc. Currently has fifteen directors, three of whom are 

Independent Directors. All the 15 directors are considered Executive Officers in addition to the Chief 

Accounting Officer, Internal Audit Head, Compliance Officer and Data Protection Officer. Below is the 

profile of the directors and executive officers for 2022-2023, with their corresponding positions, offices, 

and business experience held for the past five years. The directors and executive officers assumed their 

directorship during the Asia Pacific Medical Center (APMC) – Aklan Inc. formerly known as Allied Care 

Experts (ACE) Medical Center – Aklan’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting in 2021 for a term of one year, and 

until their successors are duly elected and qualified. 
 

 
 

 FERJENEL G. BIRON, MD. 

Chairman – Board of Director 

 

Age: 57 

Civil Status: Married 

Address: Ortigas, Pasig City 

Specialty Training: General Medicine 

Business and Professional Work Experience:  

 

 Dr. Biron is the Chairman of the Asia-Pacific Medical 

Center (APMC) group of hospitals which were 

separately incorporated in December 2014 (Asia Pacific 

Medical Center-Iloilo, Inc.), September 2017 (Asia 

Pacific Medical Center – Bacolod, Inc.) and December 

2017 (Asia Pacific Medical Center- Aklan, Inc.). He is 

also the Founding President of the said hospitals and 

served in that capacity until June 2020 in APMC Aklan, 

August 2021 in APMC Iloilo and 14 August 2022 in 

APMC Bacolod. He is also the Founding President and 

CEO of Phil Pharmawealth Inc. until 2004 and the 

current President of Aesthetical Manila, Inc., and 

Smartlab Diagnsotics, Inc.. He also serves as the 

Chairman of Botikang Pinoy, Inc., Super BP Mart 

Corporation and Park3 Realty Development 

Corporation. He was elected Congressman of the 

Fourth (4th) District of Iloilo from 2004 -2013 and 2006-

2019 and re-elected lastMay 2022. He previously 

served as Chairman of the Committee onLegislative 

Franchises and Committee on Trade and Industry and 

was recently appointed as part of the House Contingent 

in the Commission on Appointments. He is a member 

of the Board of Directors of Allied Care Experts (ACE) 

Medical Center – Butuan Inc., Allied Care Experts (ACE) 



 

 

Medical Center – GENSAN Inc. and Allied Care Experts 

(ACE) Medical Center – Cagayan de Oro, Inc. He is 

writing his thesis for Master of Arts in Hospital 

Administration at Cebu Doctor’s College. He also took a 

course in Master in Business Economics from the 

University of Asia and the Pacific. As one of the 

Directors of the Company, he had attended the 

Corporate Governance Training conducted by PWC/Isla 

Lipana on 14 May 2021 and the Master class in 

Complete Staff Work conducted by the Center for 

Global Best Practices on September 15- 17, 2021 and 

September 20-22, 2021 and Family Business 

Governance on March 17-28, 2022.  

 
 

 SIMEON A. ARCE, JR., MD. 

President – Board of Director 

 

Age: 60 

Civil Status: Married 

Address: Andagao, Kalibo, Aklan 

Specialty Training: Internal Medicine 

Business and Professional Work 

Experience:  

Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center; 

Medical Officer 4 DRSTMH Dept. of Medicine 1990-

1996 Visiting Consultant St Jude’s Hospital 2002-2017 

Visiting Consultant DRSTMH 2002 –present Visiting 

Consultant- Aklan Mission Hospital, 19962019 

Chairman of the Board – Village Marketing-Kalibo Corp. 

2003-present; Board of Director S&D Agroindustrial 

Corp 2006-present Treasurer – ACEMC Aklan Inc.2018 -

2019 President – APMC-AKLAN INC. 2020 
 

 
EILEEN MAY B. DEBUQUE, MD. 

Vice-Chairman – Board of Director 

 

Age: 55 

Civil Status: Married 

Address: Tigayon, Kalibo, Aklan  

Specialty Training: Internal Medicine 

Business and Professional Work Experience:  

Vice Chairman, APMC-Aklan (2018-present) Clinical 

Practitioner in Internal Medicine- Balbastro Medical 

Clinic (1998-present) Visiting Consultant-Saint Gabriel 

Medical Center(1998-present) Visiting Consultant-Dr. 

Rafael S. Tumbokon Memorial Hospital (2002-present) 

Visiting Consultant-Panay Health Care MPC Hospital 

(2013-present) Fellow, Philippine College of Physicians 

Member-PCP Capiz-Aklan Chapter & PMA, Aklan 



 

 

Medical Society Visiting Consultant- Saint Jude’s 

Hospital (19982017) Visiting Consultant-Aklan 

Cooperative Mission Hospital (1998-2019) MICU 

Consultant-Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon Memorial Hospital 

(2003-2005) Medical Officer IV (Dept. of Internal 

Medicine)-Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon Memorial Hospital 

(19982002) Past Vice President, Past Secretary & Past 

Board of Director-Aklan Medical Society Masters in 

Mgmt, major in Hospital Administration, June 2018 

 
 CLAIRE B. PEREZ, MD. 

Vice President – Board of Director 

 

Age: 51 

Civil Status: Married 

Address: Tigayon, Kalibo, Aklan 

Specialty Training: Internal Medicine – Cardiology 

Business and Professional Work 

Experience:  

Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, 

Panay Health Care MPC Hospital, Aklan Mission 

Cooperative Hospital, Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon 

Memorial Hospital, Saint Jude Hospital PCP Capiz-Aklan 

Chapter Secretary – 2015 PCP Capiz-Aklan Chapter 

Asst. Secretary/Treasurer – 2016PCP Vice President, 

Capiz-Aklan Chapter (2018-2019) PCP President, Capiz-

Aklan Chapter 2019 Director – ACEMC Aklan Inc 2018 – 

2019 Director/Assistant Treasurer APMC Aklan 2020 

 

 MARSHA LOURDES P. CONANAN-MORATO, MD. 

Corporate Secretary – Board of Director 

 

Age: 40 

Civil Status: Married 

Address: Tigayon, Kalibo, Aklan 

Specialty Training: Anesthesiology 

Business and Professional Work 

Experience:  

Chief Resident- Dept. of Anesthesiology- West Visayas 

State University Medical Center (20092012); Medical 

Specialist I- Ibajay District Hospital 

(20122016);Chairman-Dept. of Anesthesiology- Saint 

Gabriel Medical Center (2016-present); Visiting 

Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center 

(2012present); Chairman-Dept. of 

Anesthesiology(20142018) and Visiting Consultant- 

Panay Health Care MPC Hospital; Visiting Consultant-

Aklan Mission Cooperative Hospital, Visiting 



 

 

Consultant- Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon Memorial Hospital; 

Chairman-Dept. of Anesthesiology(2014-2018) and 

Visiting Consultant- Aklan Baptist Hospital (2013-

present); Visiting Consultant- St. Jude’s Hospital; 

Auditor/ Member-Aklan Medical Society (2014-2016/ 

2013-present) Board of Director & Corporate 

Secretary- APMCAklan Inc. (2017- present) 

 

 NIKKI JAMES C. FRANCISCO, MD. 

Assistant Secretary – Board of Director 

 

Age: 38 

Civil Status: Single 

Address: Linabuan Norte, Kalibo, Aklan 

Specialty Training: Pediatrics 

Business and Professional Work 

Experience:  

Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Panay 

Health Care MPC Hospital, Aklan Mission Cooperative 

Hospital, Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon Memorial Hospital, 

Asst. Secretary – APMC Aklan Inc 
 

JOANNE B. ABRIL, MD. 

Treasurer – Board of Director 

 

Age: 43 

Civil Status: Married  

Address: Pook, Kalibo, Aklan 

Specialty Training: Internal Medicine – Infectious 

Disease 

Business and Professional Work 

Experience:  

Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Panay 

Health Care MPC Hospital, Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon 

Memorial Hospital, Saint Jude Hospital Chairman- 

Infection Prevention and Control- Panay Health Care 

Chairman- Antimicrobial Stewardship CommitteePanay 

Health Care BOD- PCP Capiz-Aklan 2018-2019 Treasurer-

PCP Capiz-Aklan 2019-2020 Director/ Treasurer APMC 

Aklan Inc 2020 

 



 

 

 GREGORY JOSEPH RYAN A. ARDEÑA, MD. 

Assistant Treasurer-Board of Director 

 

Age: 47 

Civil Status: Single 

Address: New Buswang, Kalibo, Aklan 

Specialty Training: Internal Medicine – Endocrinology 

Business and Professional Work 

Experience:  

Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Panay 

Health Care MPC Hospital, Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon 

Memorial Hospital, Saint Jude Hospital Past President 

(2017-2018): PCP Capiz-Aklan Chapter Chairman: Dept. of 

Medicine Panay Health Care Hospital 2013- present 

Director – APMC Aklan Inc 

 REGINA R. BUENAFLOR, MD 
Board of Director 

 
Age: 43 

Civil Status: Married 

Address: Sitio San Antonio, Mangan, Banga, Aklan 

Specialty Training: Obstetrics & Gynecology 

Business and Professional Work 

Experience:  

Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Panay 

Health Care MPC Hospital, Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon 

Memorial Hospital, Saint Jude Hospital, Aklan 

Cooperative Mission Hospital. Board of Director APMC 

Aklan Inc. 2021 

 MERIDE DAULO-LAVILLA, MD. 

Board of Director 

 

Age: 59 

Civil Status: Married Address: 

Lapaz, Iloilo City Specialty 

Training: Pediatrics 

Business and Professional Work 

Experience:  

Dr. Lavilla is the current Vice Chairman of the Board. She 

had also served the Company as Assistant Corporate 

Treasurer from December 2014 to May 2016 and was the 

Corporate Secretary from June 2016 until she stepped 

down to become Assistant Corporate Secretary on 

September 2019, a position she held until her election as 

Vice Chairman in August 2021. Dr. Lavilla was also the 

CorporateSecretary of Healthlink Inc. for 3 years and 

member of its Board of Directors for 5 years. She also 



 

 

served as the Corporate Treasurer from 2017 to 2018 and 

Assistant Corporate Treasurer from 2019 until she was 

elected Assistant Corporate Secretary in 2021 until 

14August 2022 of Asia Pacific Medical Center Bacolod 

Inc. She is the Vice President of Asia Pacific Medical 

Center (APMC) - Aklan Inc. since 2018. She had been a 

Director of Allied Care Experts MedicalCenter Cagayan de 

Oro Inc. from 2016 and is the current Assistant Corporate 

Treasurer of the corporation. She is also a Founding 

Member of Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center-

Butuan, Inc., and Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical 

Center – GENSAN. Dr. Lavilla served as Chairman of Excel 

Global Inc. from 2017-2020. Dr. Lavilla is a member of the 

Philippine College of Occupational Medicine and is a 

Medical Retainer for Vitarich Corporation from 2009 to 

date and Angelina Bakeshop from 2008 to 2020. Dr. 

Lavilla took Bachelor of Science in Biology and graduated 

Cum Laude from West Visayas State University in 1984. 

She had her medical studies at West Visayas State 

University, College of Medicine in 1988. She had her 

Post-Graduate Internship at St. Paul’s Hospital in the year 

1988-1989 and had her residency training in Pediatrics 

and became the Chief Resident at West Visayas State 

University Medical Center from 1990 to 1993. She 

became a Diplomate of the Philippine Pediatric Society in 

1998 and a Fellow Member in 2014. She has been a 

Clinical Preceptor in Pediatrics for 2nd and 3rd year 

Medical Students of West Visayas State University, 

College of Medicine from 1994 to present. She is 

completing her thesis for Master of Arts in Hospital 

Administration at Cebu Doctors University. Aside from 

being a Physician, Dr. Lavilla is also a Registered Nurse. As 

one of the Directors of the Company, she attended the 

Corporate Governance Training conducted by PWC/Isla 

Lipana on 14 May 2021, and the training on Best 

Practices in Corporate Housekeeping conducted by the 

Center for Global Best Practices on January 12, 13 & 28, 

2022. 
 RAYMUNDO R. QUIMPO, MD. 

Board of Director 

 

Age: 49 

Civil Status: Married 

Address: Estancia, Kalibo, Aklan 

Specialty Training: Orthopedic Surgery 

Business and Professional Work 

Experience:  

Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Panay 



 

 

Health Care MPC Hospital, Aklan Mission Cooperative 

Hospital, Medical Specialist -Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon 

Memorial Hospital; Head Dept of Orthopedics 2007 – 

present, Chairman USWAG Dev’t Foundation President, 

USWAG Employees Cooperative BOD, Northwestern 

Visayas Colleges BOD, Philippine Orthopedic Association- 

Western Visayas Chapter Director/Chairman- 

Construction Com.- APMC Aklan Inc. 

 DANILO C. REGOZO, MD. 

Board of Director 

 

Age: 59 

Civil Status: Married 

Address: Tanza, Iloilo City 

Specialty Training: Family Physician 

Business and Professional Work 

Experience:  

Dr. Regozo is the current Executive Vice President of the 

Company and theconcurrent Head of the Construction 

Committee. He is also the ExecutiveVice President of Asia 

Pacific Medical Center - Bacolod Inc. since 2017 and a 

Director in Allied Care Experts Medical Center, Butuan 

Inc. and Allied Care Experts Medical Center, GENSAN Inc. 

since 2016 and Asia-Pacific Medical CenterAklan, Inc. 

since 2017. Dr. Regozo is the owner of Farmacia Neo and 

Regozo Family Medicine Clinic. He is also an Associate 

Member of the Philippine College of Occupational 

Medicine from 1994 to present. He was the Treasurer 

from 2001 to 2003 and Vice President from 2003 to 2004 

of the Philippine Academy of Family Physicians, Iloilo 

Chapter. Moreover, Dr. Regozo was the Assistant 

Secretary from 2014 to 2016, Vice President from 2016 

to 2018 and a member of the Board of Directors of Iloilo 

Medical Society from2018 to 2019. Dr. Regozo graduated 

at the University of the Philippines with a degree in 

Bachelor of Science in Fisheries in 1983. He finished his 

Bachelor of Science in Biological Sciences at West Visayas 

State Universityin 1984. He then completed his Medical 

Degree at West Visayas State University, College of 

Medicine in 1988. Dr. Regozo had his Post-

GraduateInternship at St. Paul’s Hospital in 1988. In 

1999, he was conferred as Diplomate in Family Medicine. 

Aside from being a Physician, Dr. Regozo is also 

registered Nurse. Currently, Dr. Regozo is writing his 

thesis for his Master of Arts in Hospital Administration at 

Cebu Doctor’s College. As one of the Directors of the 

Company, he had attended the Corporate Governance 



 

 

Training conducted by PWC/Isla Lipana on 14 May 2021 

and the training on Best Practices in Strategy Execution, 

conducted by the Center for Global Best Practices on 

October 28, 2021. He also attended theRisk Management 

in the Age of Covid 19 training conducted by the Institute 

of Corporate Directors on April 28, 2022.  

 MARY KAREN VERONICA R. ICAMINA, MD. 

Independent Director 

 

Age: 45 

Civil Status: Single 

Address: Kalibo, Aklan 

Specialty Training: Obstetrics & Gynecology 

Business and Professional Work 

Experience:  

Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Aklan 

Mission Cooperative Hospital, Saint Jude Hospital, The 

Health Centrum, Roxas City, MMG Aklan Specialty Clinics, 

Board of Director 2012 present Saint Gabriel Medical 

Center, Head Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology 

2013 - present; Director – APMC Aklan Inc; Director – 

APMC Aklan Inc 

 DELPHINE JOANNE C. QUINTANA-BARTOLOME, MD. 

Independent Director 

 

Age: 42 

Civil Status: Married 

Address: Tigayon, Kalibo, Aklan 

Specialty Training: Obstetrics and Gynecology 

Business and Professional Work 

Experience:  

Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Panay 

Health Care MPC Hospital, Aklan Mission Cooperative 

Hospital, Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon Memorial Hospital, 

Saint Jude Hospital; Director APMC Aklan Inc 

 DARCY A. QUINDOR, MD. 

Independent Director 

 

Age: 45 

Civil Status: Married 

Address: Kalibo, Aklan 

Specialty Training: Ear/Nose/Throat-Head & Neck 

Surgery 

Business and Professional Work 

Experience:  



 

 

Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Panay 

Health Care MPC Hospital, Aklan Mission Cooperative 

Hospital, Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon Memorial Hospital, 

Saint Jude Hospital; Director APMC Aklan Inc 

 BONNIE VEE S. DELA TORRE 

Internal Audit Head 

 

Age: 36 

Civil Status: Single 

Address: Caticlan, Malay, Aklan 

Business Experience: 
● Chief Accounting Officer (1 year) – Asia Pacific 

Medical Center – Aklan Inc. (Formerly: Allied Care 

Experts (ACE) Medical Center-Aklan Inc.) 
● Owner – DT Accounting and Consultancy 

Services. 
● Audit Manager – Aklan Electric Cooperative 

Compliance Head – Maxicare Healthcare Corporation 

 

MARY GRACE N. GARCES 

Chief Accounting Officer 

 

Age: 27 

Civil Status: Single 

Address: Bugasongan, Lezo, Aklan 

Business and Professional Work 

Experience:  

● Accounting Head of APMC -

Aklan 

● Accounting Consultant of Aklan 

Cooperative Mission Hospital 

Financial Reporting Associate of G. Pagaspas Partners 7 

Co., CPAs 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

ATTY. MAYLENE B. VILLANUEVA 

Compliance Officer 

 

Age: 41 

Civil Status: Single 

Address: 24G Millenia Suites, Escriva Drive, Ortigas, 

Pasig City 

Business Experience: 
● Compliance Officer (2 months) – Asia-Pacific 

Medical Center Bacolod, Inc. (Formerly: Allied Care 

Experts (ACE) Medical Center-Bacolod Inc.) 
● Corporate Secretary and Compliance Officer (3 

years) – Asia Pacific Medical Center-Iloilo Inc. 

(Formerly: Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center-

Iloilo Inc.) 
● Compliance Officer (2 years) – Asia Pacific 

Medical Center – Aklan Inc. (Formerly: Allied Care 

Experts (ACE) Medical Center-Aklan Inc.) 
● President (4 years) – TIPP Digital Solutions, Inc. 
● Managing Partner (4 years) – Villanueva and 

Trasporto and Partners 
● Acting President (7 months) – Phil 

Pharmawealth, Inc. 
● Vice President for Legal Affairs and Human 

Resource (8 years)- Phil Pharmawealth, Inc. 
● Corporate Secretary (5 years) – Quicklab 

Diagnostics, Inc. 
● Corporate Secretary (5 years) – Smartlab 

Diagnostics, Inc. 
● Corporate Secretary (6 years)- Aesthetica 

Manila Inc. 
 

 
DR. MAY URBANOZO-IGNACIO 

Data Privacy Officer 

 

Age: 49 

Civil Status: Married 

Address: Old Buswang, Kalibo, Aklan Specialty Training: 

Adult Neurology 

Business and Professional Work Experience: 

Medical Specialist III/ Chief of Clinics at Dr. Rafael S. 

Tumbukon Memorial Hospital 2012 to Present  



 

 

 



 

“ANNEX C” 
 

 

FINAL LIST OF CANDIDATES 
 
 

REGULAR DIRECTORS 

NO. NOMINEE NOMINATOR 

1 DR. JOANNE B. ABRIL DR. PAULEEN M. SAZON 

2 DR. SIMEON A. ARCE, JR. DR. RAYMUNDO R. QUIMPO 

3 DR. GREGORY JOSEPH RYAN A. ARDEÑA DR. SIMEON A. ARCE, JR. 

4 DR. FERJENEL G. BIRON DR. CLAIRE PEREZ 

5 DR. REGINA R. BUENAFLOR DR. ESTER F. PALMA 

6 DR. MARSHA LOURDES CONANAN- 

MORATO 

DR. ROEL A. ESCANILLAS 

7 DR. EILEEN MAY B. DEBUQUE DR. JOHNNA G. DE JOSE 

8 DR. NIKKI JAMES FRANCISCO DR. MA. ESTER L. ALFARO 

9 DR. MERIDE DAULO-LAVILLA DR. DARCY QUINDOR 

10 DR. CLAIRE B. PEREZ DR. MARSHA LOURDES CONANAN-MORATO 

11 DR. RAYMUNDO R. QUIMPO DR. MARIBEL J. ARCE 

12 DR. DANILO C. REGOZO DELPHINE JOANNE QUINTANA-BARTOLOME 

 
 
 

 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

NO. NOMINEE NOMINATOR 

1 DR. DELPHINE JOANNE C. QUINTANA BARTOLOME DR. HARRIET R. NAVARRO 

2 DR. MARY KAREN VERONICA R. ICAMINA DR. NIKKI JAMES C. FRANCISCO 

3 DR. DARCY A. QUINDOR DR. MAY U. IGNACIO 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Office Address: 2/F Aklan Polyclinic & Drugstore, Goding Ramos Street, Kalibo, Aklan 5600 
Business/Principal Address: Judge Martelino Road, Brgy. Andagao, Kalibo, Aklan 

Tel: +63 (036) 268-2320/ +63917-814-6042/ asiapacificmedicalcenter.aklan@yahoo.com/ www.asiapacificmedicalcenter-aklan.com 

http://www.asiapacificmedicalcenter-aklan.com/


 

 

 

“ANNEX C1” 
PROFILE OF CANDIDATES FOR 2023-2024 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 

 

FERJENEL G. BIRON, MD. 
 

Age: 58 

 Civil Status: Married  
Address: Ortigas, Pasig City 
Specialty Training: General Medicine 
Business and Professional Work Experience: 
Dr. Biron is the Chairman of the Asia-Pacific Medical Center (APMC) 
group of hospitals which were separately incorporated in December 

2014 (Asia Pacific Medical Center-Iloilo, Inc.), September 2017 (Asia 
Pacific Medical Center – Bacolod, Inc.) and December 2017 (Asia Pacific 

Medical Center- Aklan, Inc.). He is also the Founding President of the 
said hospitals and served in that capacity until June 2020 in APMC 
Aklan, August 2021 in APMC Iloilo and 14 August 2022 in APMC 
Bacolod. He is also the Founding President and CEO of Phil 
Pharmawealth Inc. until 2004 and the current President of Aesthetical 

Manila, Inc., and Smartlab Diagnsotics, Inc.. He also serves as the 
Chairman of Botikang Pinoy, Inc., Super BP Mart Corporation and Park3 
Realty Development Corporation. He was elected Congressman of the 
Fourth (4th) District of Iloilo from 2004 -2013 and 2006-2019 and re-
elected lastMay 2022. He previously served as Chairman of the 
Committee onLegislative Franchises and Committee on Trade and 
Industry and was recently appointed as part of the House Contingent 
in the Commission on Appointments. He is a member of the Board of 

Directors of Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center – Butuan Inc., 
Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center – GENSAN Inc. and Allied Care 
Experts (ACE) Medical Center – Cagayan de Oro, Inc. He is writing his 
thesis for Master of Arts in Hospital Administration at Cebu Doctor’s 
College. He also took a course in Master in Business Economics from 
the University of Asia and the Pacific. As one of the Directors of the 
Company, he had attended the Corporate Governance Training 

conducted by PWC/Isla Lipana on 14 May 2021 and the Master class in 
Complete Staff Work conducted by the Center for Global Best Practices 
on September 15- 17, 2021 and September 20-22, 2021 and Family 
Business Governance on March 17-28, 2022. 



 

 

 

 

EILEEN MAY B. DEBUQUE, MD. 
 

Age: 55  

Civil Status: Married 

Address: Tigayon, Kalibo, Aklan 
Specialty Training: Internal Medicine 

Business and Professional Work Experience: 
Vice Chairman, APMC-Aklan (2018-present) Clinical Practitioner in 

Internal Medicine- Balbastro Medical Clinic (1998-present) 
Visiting Consultant-Saint Gabriel Medical Center(1998-present) 
Visiting Consultant-Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon Memorial Hospital (2002- 
present) 
Visiting Consultant-Panay Health Care MPC Hospital (2013-present) 
Fellow, Philippine College of Physicians Member-PCP Capiz Aklan 
Chapter & PMA, Aklan Medical Society 
Visiting Consultant- Saint Jude’s Hospital (19982017) 

Visiting Consultant-Aklan Cooperative Mission Hospital (1998-2019) 
MICU Consultant-Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon Memorial Hospital (2003- 
2005) Medical Officer IV (Dept. of Internal Medicine)-Dr. Rafael S. 

Tumbokon Memorial Hospital (19982002) 

Past Vice President, Past Secretary & Past Board of Director Aklan 
Medical Society 

Masters in Mgmt, major in Hospital Administration, June 2018 
 

 

SIMEON A. ARCE, JR., MD. 
 

Age: 60 

Civil Status: Married 
Address: Andagao, Kalibo, Aklan 

Specialty Training: Internal 

Medicine 
Business and Professional Work  Experience: 
Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center; 
Medical Officer 4 DRSTMH Dept. of Medicine 1990- 1996 
Visiting Consultant St Jude’s Hospital 2002-2017 

Visiting Consultant DRSTMH 2002 –present 
Visiting Consultant- Aklan Mission Hospital, 1996 2019 

Chairman of the Board – Village Marketing-Kalibo Corp. 2003- present; 
Board of Director S&D Agroindustrial Corp 2006-present Treasurer – 
ACEMC Aklan Inc.2018 -2019 
President – APMC-AKLAN INC. 2020 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 

MERIDE DAULO-LAVILLA, MD. 
 

Age: 60 
Civil Status: Married Address: Lapaz, Iloilo City Specialty 
Training: Pediatrics 

Business and Professional Work Experience: 
Dr. Lavilla is the current Vice Chairman of the Board. She had also served 

the Company as Assistant Corporate Treasurer from December 2014 to 

May 2016 and was the Corporate Secretary fromJune 2016 until she 

stepped down to become Assistant Corporate Secretary on September 

2019, a position she held until her election as Vice Chairman in August 

2021. Dr. Lavilla was also the CorporateSecretary of Healthlink Inc. for 3 

years and member of its Board ofDirectors for 5 years. She also served 

as the Corporate Treasurer from 2017 to 2018 and Assistant Corporate 

Treasurer from 2019 until she was elected Assistant Corporate Secretary 

in 2021 until 14 August 2022 of Asia Pacific Medical Center Bacolod Inc. 

She is the Vice President of Asia Pacific Medical Center (APMC) - Aklan 

Inc. since 2018. She had been a Director of Allied Care Experts 

MedicalCenter Cagayan de Oro Inc. from 2016 and is the current 

AssistantCorporate Treasurer of the corporation. She is also a Founding 

Member of Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center-Butuan, Inc., and 

Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center – GENSAN. Dr. Lavilla served as 

Chairman of ExcelGlobal Inc. from 2017-2020. Dr. Lavilla is a member of 

the Philippine College of Occupational Medicine and is a Medical 

Retainer for Vitarich Corporation from 2009 to date and Angelina 

Bakeshop from 2008 to 2020. Dr. Lavilla took Bachelor of Science in 

Biology and graduated Cum Laude from West Visayas State University in 

1984. She had her medical studies at West Visayas State University, 

College of Medicine in 1988. She had her Post-Graduate Internship at St. 

Paul’s Hospital in the year 1988-1989 and had her residency training in 

Pediatrics and became the Chief Resident at West Visayas State 

University Medical Center from 1990 to 1993. She became a Diplomate 

of the Philippine Pediatric Society in 1998 and a Fellow Member in 2014. 

She has been a Clinical Preceptor in Pediatrics for 2nd and 3rd year 

Medical Students of West Visayas State University, College of Medicine 

from 1994 to present. She is completing her thesis for Master of Arts in 

Hospital Administration at Cebu DoctorsUniversity. Aside from being a 

Physician, Dr. Lavilla is also a Registered Nurse. As one of the Directors 

of the Company, she attended the Corporate Governance Training 

conducted by PWC/Isla Lipana on 14 May 2021, and the training on Best 

Practices in Corporate Housekeeping conducted by the Center for Global 

Best Practices on January 12, 13 & 28, 2022. 



 

 

 
 

 

MARSHA LOURDES P. CONANAN-MORATO, MD. 
 

Age: 40 
Civil Status: Married 

Address: Tigayon, Kalibo, Aklan Specialty 
Training: Anesthesiology 
Business and Professional Work Experience: 

Chief Resident- Dept. of Anesthesiology- West Visayas State University 
Medical Center (2009-2012); 
Medical Specialist I- Ibajay District Hospital (20122016); 
Chairman-Dept. of Anesthesiology- Saint Gabriel Medical Center 

(2016-present); 

Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center (2012present); 
Chairman-Dept.  of Anesthesiology(20142018) and Visiting 

ConsultantPanay Health Care MPC Hospital; Visiting ConsultantAklan 

Mission Cooperative Hospital, Visiting Consultant- Dr. Rafael S. 

Tumbokon Memorial Hospital; Chairman-Dept.  of 
Anesthesiology(20142018) and Visiting Consultant- Aklan Baptist 
Hospital (2013-present); Visiting Consultant- St. Jude’s Hospital; 

Auditor/ Member-Aklan Medical Society (2014-2016/ 2013-present) 
Board of Director & Corporate Secretary- APMC Aklan Inc. (2017- 
present) 

 

 

JOANNE B. ABRIL, MD. 
 

Age: 43 
Civil Status: Married  

Address: Pook, Kalibo, Aklan 
Specialty Training: Internal Medicine – Infectious Disease 
Business and Professional Work Experience: 
Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Panay Health Care 
MPC Hospital, Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon Memorial Hospital, Saint Jude 
Hospital Chairman- Infection Prevention and Control- Panay Health 
Care Chairman- Antimicrobial Stewardship Committee Panay Health 
Care BOD- PCP Capiz-Aklan 2018-2019 
Treasurer-PCP Capiz-Aklan 2019-2020 

Director/ Treasurer APMC Aklan Inc 2020 



 

 

 

 

CLAIRE B. PEREZ, MD. 

 
Age: 51 

Civil Status: Married 

Address: Tigayon, Kalibo, Aklan 

Specialty Training: Internal Medicine – Cardiology 
Business and Professional Work Experience: 

Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Panay Health Care MPC 
Hospital, Aklan Mission Cooperative Hospital, Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon 
Memorial Hospital, Saint Jude Hospital PCP CapizAklan Chapter Secretary – 
2015 

PCP Capiz-Aklan Chapter Asst. Secretary/Treasurer – 2016PCP Vice 
President, Capiz-Aklan Chapter (2018-2019) PCP President, Capiz-Aklan 
Chapter 2019 
Director ACEMC Aklan Inc 2018 – 2019 
Director/Assistant Treasurer APMC Aklan 2020 

 

 

GREGORY JOSEPH RYAN A. ARDEÑA, MD. 

 
Age: 47 
Civil Status: Single 
Address: New Buswang, Kalibo, Aklan 

Specialty Training: Internal Medicine – Endocrinology 

Business and Professional Work Experience: 

Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Panay Health Care MPC 
Hospital, Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon Memorial Hospital, Saint Jude Hospital 
Past President (2017-2018): PCP Capiz-Aklan Chapter 

Chairman: Dept. of Medicine Panay Health Care Hospital 2013- present 
Director – APMC Aklan Inc 

 

 

REGINA R. BUENAFLOR, MD. 

 
Age: 43 

Civil Status: Married 
Address: Sitio San Antonio, Mangan, Banga, Aklan Specialty 
Training: Obstetrics & Gynecology 
Business and Professional Work Experience: 

Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Panay Health Care 
MPC Hospital, Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon Memorial Hospital, Saint Jude 

Hospital, Aklan Cooperative Mission Hospital 

Board of Director APMC Aklan Inc. 2021 
 

 

NIKKI JAMES C. FRANCISCO, MD. 
 

Age: 38 
Civil Status: Single 

Address: Linabuan Norte, Kalibo, Aklan 
Specialty Training: Pediatrics 

Business and Professional Work Experience: 

Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Panay Health 
Care MPC Hospital, Aklan Mission Cooperative Hospital, Dr. Rafael 



 

 

S. Tumbokon Memorial Hospital 

Asst. Secretary – APMC Aklan Inc 
 

 

 

RAYMUNDO R. QUIMPO, MD. 

 
Age: 49 
Civil Status: Married 

Address: Estancia, Kalibo, Aklan Specialty 
Training: Orthopedic Surgery 

Business and Professional Work Experience: 
Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Panay Health 

Care MPC Hospital, Aklan Mission Cooperative Hospital, Medical 
Specialist -Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon Memorial Hospital; Head Dept of 

Orthopedics 2007 – present, Chairman USWAG Dev’t Foundation 
President USWAG Employees Cooperative BOD, Northwestern 
Visayas Colleges BOD, Philippine Orthopedic Association- Western 
Visayas Chapter Director/Chairman- Construction Com.- APMC 

Aklan 

Inc. 
 

 

DANILO C. REGOZO, MD. 

 
Age: 60 
Civil Status: Married 
Address: Tanza, Iloilo City 
Specialty Training: Family Physician 
Business and Professional Work 
Experience: 

Dr. Regozo is the current Executive Vice President of the Company and 
theconcurrent Head of the Construction Committee. He is also the 
ExecutiveVice President of Asia Pacific Medical Center - Bacolod Inc. 
since 2017 and a Director in Allied Care Experts Medical Center, 
Butuan Inc. and Allied Care Experts Medical Center, GENSAN Inc. since 
2016 and Asia-Pacific Medical CenterAklan, Inc. since 2017. Dr. Regozo 
is the owner of Farmacia Neo and Regozo Family Medicine Clinic. He is 
also an Associate Member of the Philippine College of Occupational 
Medicine from 1994 to present. He was the Treasurer from 2001 to 
2003 and Vice President from 2003 to 2004 of the Philippine Academy 
of Family Physicians, Iloilo Chapter. Moreover, Dr. Regozo was the 
Assistant Secretary from 2014 to 2016, Vice President from 2016 to 
2018 and a member of the Board of Directors of Iloilo Medical Society 
from2018 to 2019. Dr. Regozo graduated at the University of the 
Philippines with a degree in Bachelor of Science in Fisheries in 1983. He 
finished his Bachelor of Science in Biological Sciences at West Visayas 
State Universityin 1984. He then completed his Medical Degree at 
West Visayas State University, College of Medicine in 1988. Dr. Regozo 
had his Post-GraduateInternship at St. Paul’s Hospital in 1988. In 1999, 



 

 

he was conferred as Diplomate in Family Medicine. Aside from being a 
Physician, Dr. Regozo is also registered Nurse. Currently, Dr. Regozo is 
writing his thesis for his Master of Arts in Hospital Administration at 
Cebu Doctor’s College. As one of the Directors of the Company, he had 
attended the Corporate Governance Training conducted by PWC/Isla 
Lipana on 14 May 2021 and the training on Best Practices in Strategy 
Execution, conducted by the Center for Global Best Practices on 
October 28, 2021. He also attended theRisk Management in the Age of 
Covid 19 training conducted by the Institute of Corporate Directors on 
April 28, 2022.  

 
  

 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 

 

 

DELPHINE JOANNE C. QUINTANA-BARTOLOME, MD. 
 

Age: 42 
Civil Status: Married 

Address: Tigayon, Kalibo, Aklan 
Specialty Training: Obstetrics & Gynecology 
Business and Professional Work Experience: 
Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Panay Health Care 
MPC Hospital, Aklan Mission Cooperative Hospital, Dr. Rafael S. 
Tumbokon Memorial Hospital, Saint Jude Hospital; Director APMC 
Aklan Inc 

 

 

MARY KAREN VERONICA R. ICAMINA, MD. 

 
Age: 45 
Civil Status: Single 

Address: Kalibo, Aklan 
Specialty Training: Obstetrics & Gynecology 
Business and Professional Work Experience: 
Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Aklan Mission 
Cooperative Hospital, Saint Jude Hospital, The Health Centrum, Roxas 
City, MMG Aklan Specialty Clinics, Board of Director 2012 present 
Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Head Department of Obstetrics and 
Gynecology 2013 - present; Director APMC Aklan Inc; Director – APMC 
Aklan Inc 



 

 

 

 

DARCY A. QUINDOR, MD. 

 
Age: 45 
Civil Status: Married 
Address: Kalibo, Aklan 

Specialty Training: Ear/Nose/Throat – Head & Neck Surgery 
Business and Professional Work Experience: 
Visiting Consultant- Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Panay Health Care 
MPC Hospital, Aklan Mission Cooperative Hospital, Dr. Rafael S. 
Tumbokon Memorial Hospital, Saint Jude Hospital; Director APMC 
Aklan Inc 
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAI STATEMENTS

The management of Asia Pacific Medical Center (APMC) - Aklan lnc. (formerly Allied Care
Experts (ACE) Medical Center - Aklan lnc.) is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached therein, for the
years ended December 31, 2422,2021 and 2020, in accordance with the prescribed financial
reporting framework indicated therein, and for sueh internal control as management
determines is neeessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but tc
do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

Mendoza Querido & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, have
audited the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, have expressed its opinion on the fairness of
presentation upon completion of such audit.

Dr. Ferienel Biron
Chairman af the Board
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Mendoza Querido & Co.
16th Floor, The Salcedo Towers
169 H.V. de la Costa St., Salcedo Village
Makati City 1227 Philippines

T +63 2 8 887 1BBB

www.mqc.com.ph

PRC/BOA Accreditation No. 0966
September 22,2020, valid until
Augusl22,2023

SEC Accreditation No. 0966-SEC (Group A)
lssued Novemb er 24. 2A2A
Valid for Financral Periods 2020lo 2024

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Asia Pacific Medical Center (APMC)- Aklan lnc.
(Formerly Allied Care Expefts (ACE) Aledical Center - Aklan lnc.)
Aklan Polyclinic and Drugstore, Goding Ramos Street
Kalibo, Aklan

We have audited the financial statements of Asia Pacific Medical Center (APMC) - Aklan lnc.
(formerly Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center - Aklan lnc.) for the year ended December 31,
2022, on which we have rendered the attached report dated April 25,2023.

ln compliance with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, we are stating that the said
Company has a total number of forty-five (45) stockholders owning one hundred (100) or more shares
each"

For the firm: MENDOZA QUERIDO & CO.

RICHARD S. QUERIDO
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 84807
SEC Accreditation No. 84807-5EC (Group A)

lssued November 24, 2020
Valid for Financial Periods 2020 to 2024

TtN 102-094-633
Bl R Accreditation No. 08-0026 1 7 -OA2-2022

January 25,2022, valid until January 24,2025
PTR No. 956S440, January 7 ,2023, Makati City

April25,2023



Mendoza Querido & Co.

16th Floor, The Salcedo Towers
169 H.V. de la Costa St., Salcedo Village
Makati City'1 227 Philippines

T +63 2 B 887 1B8B

wwv.mqc.com.ph

PRC/BOA Accreditation No. 0966
September 22,2020, valid until
August22,2023

SEC Accreditation No. 0966-SEC (Group A)
lssued November 24, 2A2A
Valid for Financial Periods 2020 to 2024

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Asia Pacific lv{edical Center (APhIC) - Aklan lnc.
(Formerly Allied Care Expefis (ACE) lt/ledical Center - Aklan lnc.)
Aklan Polyclinic and Drugstore, Goding Ramos Street
Kalibo, Aklan

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Asia Pacific lt/edical Center (APMC) - Aklan lnc.
(formerly Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center - Aklan lnc.) (the Company), which comprise the
statements of financial position as at December 31 ,2422 and 2021, and the statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31 ,2022, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

ln our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31,2022 and 2021, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2A22 in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basrs for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audrfor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Sfafemenfs section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for ProfessionalAccountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit llatters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionaljudgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period.

As at December 31 ,2022, we have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in
our report.



Responslbl/ities of Arlanagement and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Sfalemenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic aiternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditars' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Sfafemenfs

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guerrantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

a

a

a

a

a

a

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financialstatements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplementary information on taxes, duties, license fees and schedules
prescribed under existing revenue issuances in Note 21 to the financial statements is presented for
purposes of filing with the Bureau of lnternal Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. ln our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Richard S.
Querido.

For the firm: MENDOZA QUERIDO & CO.

RICHARD S. QUERIDO
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 84807
SEC Accreditation No. 84807-5EC (Group A)

lssued November 24, 2020
Valid for Financial Periods 2020 to 2024

TrN 102-094-633
Bl R Accreditation No. 08-00261 7 -002-2022

January 25,2422, valid until January 24,2025
PTR No. 9569440, January 7,2023, Makati City

April25,2A23

M-Q llendoza Querido & Co.
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AS|A PACTFIC MEDTCAL CENTER (APMC) - AKLAN INC.
(Formerly Allied Care Expefts (ACE) Medical Center - Aklan lnc.)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31,2022 AND 2021
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos/

2022 2021

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash (Notes 2, 3 and 4)
Receivables (Notes 2, 3 and 4)
Advances to contractors (Notes 2,3, 5 and 20)
Advances to suppliers (Notes 2, 3 and 6)
Prepaid tax (Notes 2 and 3)

P59,719,045
49,000

{09,697,409
41,96{,083

64,270
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Asset
Property and equipment - net (Notes 2, 3 and 7)

211,489,807 117,902,366

796,94,842 504,061,556

TOTAL ASSETS Pl,008,434,649 P621,963,922

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Accounts and other payables (Notes 2,4 and 8)
Retention payable (Notes 2, 4,9 and 20)
Advances from shareholders (Notes 2,4 and 14)
Loans payable - current portion (Notes 2,4 and 1O)

P4,676,098
37,368,844
36,993,090

P2,483,425
40,108,653
53,011,364
50,000,000

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liability
Loans payable * noncurrent (Notes 2,4 and 10)

79,038,032 145,603,442

585,000,000 195,000,000

Total Liabilities 664,038,032 U0,603,442

Equity
Share capital (Notes 2,4 and 11)
Additional paid-in capital (Notes 2 and 4)

215,060,000
200,217,500

Deficit 2and4
Total

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

617 281 360

F1,008,434,649 P621,963,922

See accompanying Nofes fo Financial Statements.

L

P85,619,715
48,000

32,234,651

193,637,000
140,972,000



ASrA PACIF|C MEDTCAL CENTER (APMC) - AKLAN tNC.
(Farmerly Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center - Aklan lnc.)
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2022,202{ AND 2O2O
(Amounts in PhiliBpine Pesos,l

2022 2021 2020

INTEREST INCOME (Note 2) P24,357 P130,873

EXPENSES 2andl

NET LOSS

31 637

(Pl7,432,363) (P24,617,960) (P10,506,926)

LOSS PER SHARE (Notes 2 and 16) (P81.06) (P120.3s) (P51.36)

There was no other comprehensive income during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020.

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

P74,764

(17,507,1271



AS|A PACTFIC MEDTCAL CENTER (APMC) - AKLAN tNC.
(Formerly Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center - Aklan lnc.)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUIW
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2022,2021 AND 2O2O
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos,l

2022 2421 2020

SHARE CAPIT{L (Notes 2,4 and 11) P215,060,000 P193,837,000 P178,756,000

ADDITIONAL PAID-IN GAPITAL (Notes 2 and 4) 200,217,500 140,972,000 13,920,000

DEFICIT (Notes 2 and 4)
Balance at beginning of year
Net loss

(53,448,520)
(17,432,363)

(28,830,560)
(24,617,960)

(18,323,634)
(10,506,926)

Balance at end of year (70,880,883) (53,448,520) (28,890,560)

i,617 P281,360,480 P163,845,440P344,39(

See accompanying Nofes lo Financial Statements.



ASIA PACTFIC MEDTCAL CENTER (APMC) - AKLAN tNC.
(Formerly Allied Care Experts GCfl Medical Center - Aklan lnc)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2022,2021 AND 2020
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos/

2022 2421 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss
Adjustments for:

lnterest income
Depreciation (Notes 7 and 12)

(P17,432,363) (P24,617,960) (p10,506,926)

(74,7641 (24,357)
192,393 156,069

(130,873)
146,150

Loss before working capital changes
lncrease (decrease) in prepaid tax
lncrease in accounts and other payables (Note8)

(17,314,7341

164,2701

_l:192,673

(24,486,248)
64,270

1,933,941

(10,491,649)

$4,274)
549,302

Net cash used in operations (15,186,331)
lnterest received 74,764

(22,488,437)
24,357

(10,006,617)
130,873

Net cash used in operating activities (15,111,567) (22,463,6E0) (9,875,744)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Retention from (release of) payment to contractors

(Note 9)
Advance payments to suppliers (Note 6)
Advance payments to contractors (Note 5)
Additions to property and equipment (Note 7)

(2,739,809) 33,980,084
(41,961,083)
(77,462,7881 (26,248,323)

(293,075,679) (271,319,813)

6,128,569

(6,034,328)
(11e?3?L5lg)

Net cash used in investing aq!!y!!pq (4r5,239,329) (263,588,052) (119,138,334)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from loans payable (Notes 10 and 17)

Proceeds from subscription of share capital (Note 11)

Proceeds from (payments o0 of advances
from stockholders (Notes 14 and 17) (16,018,274) (68,320,354)

390,000,000
80,468,500

245,000,000
142,133,000 20,156,000

121,331,718
of loans 10 and 1

NET TNGREASE (DECREASE) rN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

(25,900,670)

85,619,7't5

32,760,914

52,856,E01

12,473,640

40,385,161

CASH AT END OF YEAR P59,719,045 P85,619,715 P52,85E,801

CASH AT END OF YEAR CONSISTS OF:
Cash on hand
Cash in banks

P-
59,719,045

P-
85,619,715

P18,3s6,000
34,502,801

P59,719,045 PE5,619,715 P52,858,E01

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



ASIA PACIFIC MEDTCAL CENTER (APMC) - AKLAN rNC.
(Formerly Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center - Aklan lnc.)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General lnformation

Asia Pacific Medical Center (APMC) - Aklan lnc. (formerly Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical
Center - Aklan lnc.) [the Company] was registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on December 6, 2017 with limited life of fifty (50) years from the date of
registration primarily to establish, maintiain, operate, own and manage hospitals, medical and
related healthcare facilities and businesses such as but without restriction to clinical, laboratories,
diagnostic centers, ambulatory clinics, scientific research and educational institutions and other
allied undertaking and services which shall provide medical, surgical, nursing, therapeutic,
paramedic or similar care, provided that purely professional, medical or surgical services shall be
performed by duly qualified and licensed physicians or surgeons who may or may not be
connected with the hospitals and whose services shall be freely and individually contracted by the
patients.

The Company's Board of Directors (BOD) and Stockholders representing at least 2/3 of the
outstanding share capital at their respective meetings on June 4, 2O2O and June '14, 2020,
approved to change the Company's corporate name from Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical
Genter - Aklan lnc. to Asia Pacific Medical Center (APMC) - Aklan lnc. On December 3,2A20,
the SEC approved the amendment to the Articles of lncorporation of the Company to change the
Company's corporate name.

The Company's office address is located at Aklan Polyclinie and Drugstore, Goding Ramos
Street, Kalibo, Aklan. The hospital address is located at Judge Martelino Road, Andagao, Kalibo,
Aklan.

The Gompany has eighteen (18) and seventeen (17) employees as at December 31,2022 and
2021, respectively.

The accompanying financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,2022
were approved and authorized for issue by the BOD on April25,2A23.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Disclosures

Basis of Preparation
The accompanying financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except as othenrise strated. The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso,
which is the functional and presentation curency under the Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS). All values are rounded to the nearest peso except as othenrise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). The term PFRS, in general, includes allapplicable PFRS,
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and lnterpretations issued by former Standing
lnterpretations Committee, the Philippine lnterpretations Committee and the lnternational
Financial Reporting lnterpretations Committee (lFRlC), which have been approved by the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Counciland adopted by the Philippine SEe.
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Chanqes in Accountinq Policies
The Company consistently adopted and applied all accounting policies under PFRS which have
been issued and becomes effective except adoption of the following amendments effective
beginning January 1, 2022. Adoption of these amendments to PFRS, PAS and Philippine
lnterpretations did not have any significant impact on the Company's financial position or
performance unless othenrise indicated.

. Amendments to PFRS 3,"Reference to the Conceptual Framework"

The amendments updated the reference to the "ConceptualFramework" and an exception to
its requirement for an entity to refer to the "Conceptual Framework" to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for some types of liabilities and
contingent liabilities, an entity applying PFRS 3 should instead refer to PAS 37, "Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingenf Assels". This exception is to avoid an unintended
consequence of updating the reference. Without the exception, an entity would have
recognized some liabilities on the acquisition of a business that it would not recognize in other
circumstances. lmmediately after the acquisition, the entity would have had to derecognize
such liabilities and recognize a gain that did not depict an economic gain.

The amendments will apply on future business combinations of the Company, if any

. Amendments to PAS 16, "Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before lntended Use"

The amendments prohibit from deducting the cost of an item of proper$, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
lnstead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing
those items, in profit or loss.

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.

. Amendments to PAS 37, "Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilting a Contract"

The amendments specify that the 'cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the 'costs that relate
directly to the contract'. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the
depreeiation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.
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Annual lmprovemenfs fo PFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
The Annual lmprovements to PFRSs (2018-2020 cycle) are effective for annual periods
beginning 2022 and are not expected to have a material impact on the Company.

' Amendments to PFRS 1, "Subsldiary as a First-time Adopter"

The amendment permits a subsidiary that measures the assets and liabilities at the carrying
amounts that would be included in the parent's consolidated financial statements, based on
the parent's date of transition to PFRSS, if no adjustments were made for consolidation
procedures and for the effects of the business combination in which the parent acquired the
subsidiary, to measure cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by its
parent, based on the parent's date of transition to PFRSS.

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial statements,

. Amendments to PFRS 9, "Fees in the '10 per cent' Iesf for Derecognition of Financial
Liabilities"

The improvements elarify the fees a company includes when assessing whether the terms of
a new or modified flnancial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability.

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.

. Amendments to PFRS 16, "Lease lncentives"

The amendment removes reimbursement relating to leasehold improvements. PFRS 16 does
not contain explicit guidance on how to account for leasehold improvements made by the
lessee or when reimbursements made by the lessor in respect of those leasehold
improvements can be regarded as lease incentives. Thus, created some confusion on how a
lessee should account for such reimbursement by stating that the lessee should apply the
appropriate standard and should not account for the reimbursement as a lease incentive. The
standard had not clearly explained the conclusion as to whether the reimbursement would
meet the definition of a lease incentive in PFRS 16.

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the
finaneial statements.

. Amendments to PAS 41 ,"Taxation in Fair Value Measurements"

The amendment removes the requirement for entities to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique. This will ensure
consistency with the requirements in PFRS 13.

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.

The adoption of the foregoing new and revised PFRS and PAS will not have any material impact
on the financial statements. Additional disclosures have been included in the notes to financial
statements, as applicable.
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New Accountinq Standards. Amendments to Existino Standards and lnterpret?tions
Effective Subsequent to December 31, 2022
The standards, amendments and interpretations which have been issued but not yet effective as
at December 31, 2022 are disclosed below. Except as otherwise indicated, the Company does
not expect the adoption of the applicable new and amended PFRS to have a significant impact
on the financial position or performance.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2023

. Amendments to PAS 1 ,"Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current"

The amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping
companies determine whether, in the statement of financial position, debt and other liabilities
with an uncertain settlement date should be classified as current (due or potentially due to be

settlecl within one year) or non-current.

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.

. Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement 2, "Disclosure lnitiative - Accounting
Policies"

The amendments to PAS 1 require companies to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies. The amendments to PFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to
accounting policy disclosures.

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.

. Amendments to PAS 8, "Definition of Accounting Esfimafes"

The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies
from changes in accounting estimates. That distinction is important because changes in
accounting estimates are applied prospectively only to future transactions and other future
events, but changes in accounting policies are generally also applied retrospectively to past
transactions and other past events.

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.

. Amendments to PAS 12, "Deferred Tax related fo Assefs and Liabilities from a Single
Transaction"

The amendments require oompanies to reeognize deferred tax on partieular transactions that,
on initiel recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary
differences. The proposed amendments will typically apply to transactions such as leases for
the lessee and decommissioning obligations.

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.
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Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2024

. Amendments to PAS 1 , "Presentation of Financial Statements - Noncurrent Liabitities with
Covenants"

The amendments clarify how conditions with which an entity must compty within twelve
months after the reporting date affect the classification of a liability. The amendments modify
the requirements introduced by PAS 1 , Presentation of Financial Stafemenfs - Classification
of Liabilities as Cunent or Noncunenf , on how an entity classifies debt and other financial
liabilities as current or noncurrent in particular circumstanees. Only covenants with which an
entity is required to comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of a liability
as current or noncurrent. ln addition, an entity has to disclose information in the notes that
enables users of financial statements to understand the risk that noncurrent liabilities with
covenants could become repayable within twelve months.

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.

. Amendments to PAS 16, "Leases: Lease Liability in a Sa/e and Leaseback"

The amendments specity how a seller-lessee should apply the subsequent measurement
requirements in PFRS 16 to the lease tiability that arises in the sale and leaseback
transaction. The amendments require a seller-lessee to subsequently measure lease liabilities
arising from a leaseback in a way that it does not recognize any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The new requirements do not prevent a seller{essee
from recognizing in profit or loss relating to the partial or full termination of a lease. The
amendments also do not prescribe specific measurement requirements for lease liabilities
arising from a leaseback.

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.

Effective beginning on or afrer January 1, 2025

. PFRS 17,"lnsurance Contracts""

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
reeognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will
replace PFRS 4, "lnsurance Contracts". This new standard on insurance contracts applies to
all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance),
regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and
financial instruments with discretionary participation features, A few scope exceptions will
apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts
that is more useful and consistent for insurers. ln contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4,
which are largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17
provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting
aspects. The core of PFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

. A specific adoption for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee
approach)
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. A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration
contracts.

. Amendments to PFRS 17 , " lnsurance Contracts""

The amendments, which respond to feedback from stakeholders, are designed to:

. Reduce costs by simplifying some requirements in the Standard;. Make financial performance easier to explain; and

. Ease transition by deferring the effective date of the Standard to 2023 and by providing
additional relief to reduce the effort required when applying PFRS 17 for the first time.

The amendments are not appticable to the Company since it does not have activities that are
predominantly connected with insurance or issue insurance contracts.

. Amendment to PFRS 17, "lnitial Application of PFRS 17 and PFRS g - Compantive
lnformatian"

The amendment is a transition option relating to comparative information about finaneial
assets presented on initial application of IFRS 17. The amendment is aimed at helping
entities to avoid temporary accounting mismatches between financial assets and insurance
contract liabilities, and therefore improve the usefulness of comparative information for users
of finaneial statements.

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial statements.

"On December 15,2a21, fhe FRSC amended the mandatory effective date of PFRS 17 from January 1,2023 to
January 1, 2025. Ihrs rs consrstent with Circular Letter No. 2020-62 issued by the lnsurance Commission which
defened the implementation of IFRS 17 by two (2) years after its effective date as decided by the IASB.

Deferred Effectivity

. Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, 'Sale or Contribution of Assefs between an lnvestor
and rfs Assocrafe or Joint Venture'

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss
of control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or
joint venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3, "Business Combinations". Any gain or
loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not constitute a business,
however, is recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate or
joint venture.

On January 13,2A16, the FRSC deferred the original effective date of January 1, 2016 of the
said amendments until the lnternatlonal Accounting $tandards Board (IASB) completes its
broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may result in the
simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for
associates and joint ventures.

These amendments may apply to future transactions of the Company
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. Deferment of lmplementation of lnternational Financial Reporting lnterpretations Committee
(lFRIC) Agenda Decision on Over Time Transfer of Constructed Goods (PAS 23, "Borrowing
Cosf") for the Real Estate lndustry

ln March 2019, IFRIC published an Agenda Decision on whether borrowing costs can be
caBitalized on real estate inventories that are under construction and for which the related
revenue is/will be recognized over time under par. 35 (c) of PFRS 15. IFRIC concluded that
borrowing costs cannot be capitalized for such real estate inventories as they do not meet the
definition of a qualifying asset under PAS 23 considering that these inventories are ready for
their intended sale in their current condition.

On February 21, 2420, the Philippine SEC issued MC No. 4, Series ot 2020, providing relief to
the Real Estate lndustry by deferring the mandatory implementation of the above IFRIG
Agenda Decision until December 31, 202O- Effective January 2021, the Real Estate lndustry
will adopt the IFRIC agenda decision and any subsequent amendments thereto
retrospectively or as the SEC will later prescribe. A real estate company may opt not to avail
of the deferral and instead comply in full with the requirements of the IFRIC agenda decision.

The adoption of this amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on the
finaneial statements since the Gompany is not in a real estate industry.

No Mandatory Effective Date

. PFRS 9, "Financial lnstruments (Hedge Accounting and Amendmenfs fo PFRS 9, PFRS 7
and PAS 39)"

The amendments require the inclusion of general hedge accounting model in the notes
disclosure to the financial statements. The amendments allow early adoption of the
requirement to present fair value changes due to own credit on liabilities designated as at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL) to be presented in the other comprehensive income.

These amendments are not applicable to the Company and expected not to have an impact
on the financial statements.

Signifi cant Accountino Policies

Current versus Noncunent Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statements of financial position based on
current or noncurrent classification. An asset is current if:

' Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;. Held primadly for the purpose of trading;. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.

A liability is current when

' lt is expected to be settled in the normaloperating cycle;. lt is held primarily for the purpose of trading;. lt is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
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' There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least trrvelve months
after the reporting period.

Allother liabilities are classified as noncurrent.

Defered income tax assets and liabilities, if any, are classified as noncunent assets and
liabilities.

FairValue Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

. ln the principal rnarket for the asset Or liability, or
' ln the ab$ence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be acceseible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits hy using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that ls significant to the fair vatue measurement as a whoie:

' Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identicalassets or liabilities.
' Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
' Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair vatue disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabitities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets or liabilities and the
level of the fair value hierarchy.

Finaneial lnstruments
Financial instruments is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity or a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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Date of Recognition
The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statements of financial
position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument. ln the
case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as
applicable, is done using settlement date accounting.

"Day 7" Difference
Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other observable
current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose
variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a "Day 1" difference) in profit or loss. ln cases
where there is no observable data on inception, the Company deems the transaction price as the
best estimate of fair value and recognizes "Day {'! difference in profit or loss when the inputs
become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company
determines the appropr,iate method of recognizing the "Day 1" difference.

FinancialAssefs

lnitial Recognition
Financial assets are recogn2ed initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration
given. The initial measurement of financial assets, except for those designated at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL), includes transaction cost.

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets at initial recognition under the following categories:
(a) financial assets at amortized cost, (b) financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and ( c) financial assets at FVPL. The classification of a
financial asset at initial recognition largely depends on the Company's business model for
managing the asset and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following are met:

' The financial asset is held within a business modelwhose objective is to hold financialassets
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

' The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any allowance for impairment. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. Financial assets at amortized cost are included
under current assets if realizability or collectability is within 12 months after the reporting period.
Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

As at December 31, 2Q22 and 2021, the Company's cash and receivables are classified under
this category,
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Debt lnstruments at FVOCI
For debt instruments that are not designated at FVPL under the fair value option, the financial
assets are measured at FVOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
eollecting eontractualcash flows and selling the financialassets; and

. The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, interest income (calculated using the effective interest rate method),
foreign currency gains or losses and impairment gains or losses of debt instruments measured at
FVOCI are recognized directly in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OCI are classified from equity to profit or loss
as a reclassification adjustment.

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the eompany does not have debt instruments at FVOel.

Equity lnstruments at FVOCI
For equi$ instruments that are not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably designate, at
initial recognition, a financial a$set to be measured at FVOCI when it meets the definition of
equtty instrument under PAS 32, "Financial lnstruntehts: Fresentation". This optidn is available
and made on an lnstrument by instrument basis.

Dividends from equity instruments held at FVOCT are recognized in profrt or loss when the right to
receive payment is established, unless the dividend clearly represents a rccovery of part of the
cost of the investment. All other gains or losses from equity instruments are recognized in OCI
and presented in the equity section of the statements of financial position. These fair value
changes are recognized in equity and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,
instead, these are transferred directly to retained earnings.

As at December 31 ,2022 and 2021, the Company does not have equity instruments at FVOCI

Financial Assets at FVPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortized cost or FVOCI are
classified under this category. Specifically, financial assets at FVPL include financial assets that
are (a) held for trading, (b) designated upon initial recognition at FVPL, or ( c) mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

This category includes debt instruments whose cash flows, based on the assessment at initial
recognition of the assets, are not "solely for payment of principal and interest", and which are not
held within a business modelwhose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows or to both
collect contractual cash flows and sell.

This category also inciudes equity instruments which the Company had not irrevocably elected to
elassify at FVOCI at initial reeognition.

After initiatrecognition, financial assets at FVPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains
or losses arising from the fair valuation of financial assets at FVPL are recognized in profit or
loss.
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As at December 31, 2022 and 2A21 , the Gompany has no flnancial assets at FVPL.

Reclassification
The Company reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, it changes its business
modelfor managing those financial assets. The reclassification is applied prospectively from the
first day of the first reporting period fotlowing the change in the business model (reclassification
date).

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial
assets at FVPL, any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost
of the financial asset and fair value is recognized in profit or loss.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial
assets at FVOCI, any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amortized cost
of the financial asset and fair value is recognized in OCl.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVPL category to financial assets
at amortized cost, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying
amount.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to financial assets
at amortized cost, any gain or loss previously recognized in OCl, and any difference between the
new amortized cost and maturity amount, are amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest method. lf the financial asset is subsequently
impaired, any gain or loss that has been recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or
Ioss.

ln the case of a financial asset that does not have a fixed maturity, the gain or loss shall be
recognized in profit or loss when the financial asset is sold or disposed, lf the financial asset is
subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss that has been recognized in OCI is reclassified
from equity to proflt or loss.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVPL category to financial assets
at FVOCI, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount.
Meanwhile, for a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to
financial assets at FVPL, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment at the reclassification date.

lmpairment of Financial Assets at Amortized Cost and FVOCI
The Gompany recognizes an allowance for EeL for all debt instruments not held at FVPL. ECL
is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation to the assels original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.
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For other debt instruments measured at amortized cost and FVOCI, the ECL is based on
the 12-month ECL, which pertains to the portion of lifetime ECLs that result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. However,
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the allowance
will be based on the lifetime ECL" When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. The Company also considers
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue eost or effort, that is
indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Cornpany considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 3O days
past due unless it is demonstrated that the nonpayment was an administrative oversight rather
than resulting from financial difficulty of the borrower. However, in certain cases, the Company
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when:

. The right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

. The Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial as$et, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in fullwithout material delay to a third party under a "pass-
through" arrangement; or

. The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the financial asset and
either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor transferred control of the
financial asset, the financial asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing
involvement in the finaneial asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred financial asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the financial asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.

Financial Liabilities

lnitial Measurement
Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration
received. ln case of financial liabilities at amortized costs, the initial measurement is net of any
directly attributable transaction costs.

Classification and $ubsequent Measurement
The Company classifies its financial liabilities at initial recognition as either financial liabilities at
FVPL or financial liabilities at amortized cost.
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Financial liabilities at FVPL
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabitities held for trading
and financial liabitities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurehasing in the near term.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in PFRS 9 are satisfied. The
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

As at December 31 , 2022 and 2021, the Company does not have financial liabilities at FVPL

Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities are categorized as financial liabilities at amortized cost when the substance of
the contractual arrangement results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or
another financial asset to the hotder, or to settle the obligation other than by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

After initial recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

As at December 31,2022 and 2O21, the eompany's accounts and other payables (except
government payables), advances from shareholders and loans payable are classified under this
category.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, eancelled
or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially moctified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new tiability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized
in the statements of comprehensive income.

Fair Value Option
The Company may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial asset or liability that
would otherwise have to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income to be measured at fair value through profit or toss if doing so would
ellminate or significantly reduce an aceounting mismatch or otherwise results in more relevant
information.

Classification of Financial lnstrument between Liability and Equity
A financial instrument is classified as liability if it provides for a contractual obligation to:

. Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;

r Exchange financial assets or financlal llabilities with another €ntity under conclitions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Company; or

' Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.



-14-

lf the Company does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial
asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liability.

Otfsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements
of financial position if, and onty if, there is a cunently enforceable legal right to of&et the
recognized amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements,
and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statements of financial position.

Advances to Contractors
Advanees to eontraetors are downpayments paid to contractors, These are carried at face
amount in the statements of financial position and is liquidated via deduction, on a pro-rate basis
from the contractor's periodic progress billings.

Advances to Supoliers
Advances to suppliers are amounts paid in advance for the purchase of goods and services.
These are carried at face amount in the statements of financial position and are recognized to
appropriate asset account or in profit or loss when the services or materials for which the
advances were made are received and delivered.

Preoaid Tax
Prepaid tax represents advance payment of real property tax but not yet incurred. This is
measured at cost less amortization.

Property and Equioment
Property and equipment, except land, are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization and accumulated provision for any impairment in value, if any.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price and other costs directly
attributable in bringing the assets to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditures incurred after the property have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, are normally charged to income in the year the costs are incurred. ln situations
when it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of propefi and
equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance and the cost of such item can
be measured reliably, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost of the said proper$
and equipment.

Land is stated at cost less impairment in value, if any.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Prooerty and Eouioment
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements

The useful life and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the period and
method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items
of propefi.

No. ofyears
5
5
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Construction in progress represents structures under constructions and is stated at cost (include
cost of construction, machinery and equipment under installation and other related costs).
Construction in progress is not depreciated until such time as the relevant assets are completed
and ready for its intended use.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in the circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accaunts until they are no longer in use and no
further depreciation and amortization are recognized in profit or loss.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in profit and loss in the period the asset is derecognized.

lmoairment of Nor{inancial Aqsets
Property and equipment, advances to contractors, advances to suppliers and prepaid tax are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. lf any such indication exists and where the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) is
written down to its recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. The fair value less cost to sell is the amount
obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction less the costs of disposal
while value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For an asset that
does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU to which the asset belongs. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. ln assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks speeifie to the asset. ln determining fair value less eost to sell, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples
or other fair value indicators. lmpairment losses are recognized in the statements of
comprehensive income.

Recovery of impairment loss recognized in prior years is recorded on nonfinancial asset when
there is an indication that the impairment loss recognized for the asset no longer exists or has
decreased. The recovery is recorded in the statements of comrehensive income. However, the
increased carrying amount of an asset due to a recovery of an impairment loss is recognized to
the extent it does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for that asset in prior years.

Fquitv
Share Capital
Share capital is recognized as issued when the share is paid for or subscribed under a binding
subscription agreement and is measured at par value.

The share capital is classified into founders'share and common share.

Additional Paid-in Capital
Proceeds and/or fair value considerations received in excess of par value.
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Deficit
Deficit includes all current and prior period results of operations as disclosed in the statements of
comprehensive income.

Revenue Recoonition
Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the performance obligation in the
contract has been satisfied, either at a point in time or over time. Revenue is recognized over
time if one of the following criteria is met (a) the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits as the Company performs its obligations; (b)the Company's performance
creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or
(c) the Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company
and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.
Otherwise, revenue is recognized at a point in time.

The Company also assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting as a principal
or as an agent.

lnterest lncome
Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the effective yield on
the asset.

Cost and Exoenses
Costs and expenses are recognized in the statements of comprehensive income upon utilization
of the service or at the date these are incurred.

Shortterm Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits which fall due within twelve months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service. The Company recognizes a
liability net of amounts already paid and an expense for services rendered by employees during
the accounting period. Short{erm benefits given by the Company include salaries and wages,
social security contributions, short-term compensated absences, profit sharing and bonuses, and
non monetary benefits. Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave
days (including holiday entitlement) remaining at the statements of financial position date. These
are inc[uded in salaries and wages account at the undiscounted amount that the Company
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.

Borrowino Costs
Borrowing costs are generally recognized as expense in the year in which these costs are
incurred. However, borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences
when the activities necessary to prepare the asset for intended use are in progress and
expenditures and bonowing costs are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the
asset is available for its intended use. lt includes interest expense, finance charges in respect of
finance leases and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
that these are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.
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Leases
The Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time, the
Company assesses whether, throughout the period of use, it has the following:

. the contract involves an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct
asset. lf the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

. the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset throughout the period of use; and

. the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company when it has the
decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset
is used. The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset of either:

a. the Company has the right to operate the asset; or
b. the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it

willbe used.

Shaft=term Leases and Leases of Low=Value Assefs
The Company applies the shortterm lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
office space (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less frsm the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Taxes

Cunent lncome Tax
Cunent income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting period.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not
in the profit or loss.

Deferred lncome Tax
Deferred income tax is provided using the liabili$ method on temporary differences at the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting pu rposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences except (1) when the
deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and (2) in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
benefits of unused net operating loss carry-over (NOLCO) to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the
carryforward benefit of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except (1) when
the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and (2)

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of defened tax assets is reviewed at each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting period.

Deferred income tax relating to items recognized outside proflt or loss is recognized outside profit
or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in eorrelation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity,

Deferred tax assets and defened income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to offset current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Related Parties
A party is considered to be related to the Company if it has the ability, directly or indirecfly
through one or more intermediaries, to control, is controlled by, or is under common control with,
the Company; or exercises significant influence over the Company in making financial and
operating decisions; or has a joint control over the Company. lt is also related to the Company if
a party is an associate, a joint venture in which the Company is a venturer, a member of the key
management personnel of the Company or its parent, a close member of the family of
Company's related party, an entity controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by a key
management personnel of the Company or close member of the family of Company's related
party, and a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Company or its
related party. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities. Transactions between
related parties are based on terms similar to those offered to nonrelated parties.
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Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has present obligations, legal or constructive, as a
result of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but onty when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the
statements of comprehensive income, net of any reimbursements. lf the effect of the time value
of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pretax rate that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economie benefits is remote. Contingent
assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Loss Per Share
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the net loss (less preferred dividends net of tax, if
any) for the year attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the year, with retroactive adjustment for any stock dividends
or stock splits declared during the year.

Events After the Reportino Period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Compan/s financial position
at the end of the reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post
year-end events that are not adjusting events are discJosed in the notes to financial statements
when material.

3. Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires management to
make judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. The uncertainties
inherent in these judgments and estimates could result in outeomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities affected in the future years.



ASIA PACTFTC MEDTCAL CENTER (APMC) - AKLAN tNC.
Allied Care

Schedule of Financial Soundness
December 31,2022 and 2021

Medical Center - Aklan
cators

Ratio Formula 2A22 2021

Current ratio Current Assets
Current Liabilities

2-G8:1 0.81:1

Acid test ratio Cunent Assets - Prepayments
Current Liabilities

0.76:1 0.59:1

Solvency ratio
Net Income + Depreciation

Total Liabilities
-0.03:1 -0.07:1

Debt-to-equity ratio Total Liabilities 1.93:1 1.21.1

Asset-to-equi$ ratio TotalAssets
TotalEquity

2.93:{ 2.21.1

lnterest rate coverage
ratio -ABqEIESCEITPANet lnterest

-0.86:1 -8.83:1

Return on assets
Net lncome

Average TotalAssets
-2.14o/o -5.39%

Return on equity
Net lncome

Average Total Equity
-5.57o/o -11.060/0

Net profit margin
Net lncome

Total Revenue
a% Oo/o

Operating EBITDA
margin

Operatins EBITDA
Net Revenue

Oo/o 0o/o

TotalEquity
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b. there is no option to purchase the asset at a price that is expected to be sufficiently lower than
the fair value at the date the option becomes exercisable such that, at the inception of the
lease, it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised;

c. the lease term is not for the major part of the economic life of the asset even if title is not
transferred;

d. the leased assets are not sf sueh speeialized nature that only lessee can use them without
major modifications.

The Company accounted for its lease arrangements as operating lease (see Note 13).

Determining the Fair Values of Financial lnstruments
Where the fair values sf finaneial assets and finaneial liabilities recorded on the statements of
financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation
techniques including the discounted cash flows model. The inputs to this modelare taken from
obseryable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values. The judgments include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Estimates and Assumptions
The key estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amount$ of assets and liabilities recognized in the financial statements within the next
financial year are discussed as follows:

Assessment for ECL on Other Financial Assets at Amortized Cosf
The Company determines the allowance for ECL using general approach based on the
probability-weighted estimate of the present value of all cash shortfalls over the expected life of
financial assets at amortized cost. ECL is provided for credit losses that result from possible
default events within the nexl12 months unless there has been a significant increase in credit
riSk Sincd initialreeognition in which ease ECL is provided based on lifetime ECL.

When determining if there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue eost or effort and that is
relevant for the particular financial instrument being assessed such as, but not limited to, the
following factors:

. Actual or expected external and internal credit rating downgrade;. Existing or forecasted adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions; and. Actual or expected significant adverse changes in the operating results of the borrower.

The Company also considers financial assets that are more than 30 days past due to be the
latest point at which lifetime ECL should be recognized unless it can demonstrate that this does
not represent a significant risk in credit risk such as when non-payment was an administrative
oversight rather than resulting from financial difficulty of the borrower.
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The Company has assessed that the ECL on other financial assets at amortized cost is not
material because the transactions with respect to these financial assets were entered into by the
Company only with reputable banks and companies with good credit standing and relatively low
risk of defaults. Accordingly, no provision for ECL on other financial assets at amortized cost was
recognized in 2422 and 2021. The carrying amounts of other financial assets at amortized cost
are as follows:

2022 2021
Cash in banks
Receivables

P59,719,045 P85,619,715
000

Assessmen t fo r I m p a i rme nt of Nonfi nancial Assets
The Company assesses impairment on nonfinancial assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets or group of assets may not be
recoverable. The relevant factors that the Company considers in deciding whether to perform an
asset impairment review include, among others, the following:

. Signifieant underperfiermaRee of a business in relation to exBeetations;. Significant negative industry or economic trends; and. Significant changes or planned changes in the use of the assets.

Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss
is recognized. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for
the CGU to which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount of the asset is the greater of the fair value less cost of disposal or value
in use, The fair value less cost of disposal is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in
an arm's-length transaction. ln assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

No impairment loss on nonfinancial assets was recognizecl for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021 . The carrying amount of nonfinancial assets is as follows:

2022 2021
Property and equipment
Advances to contraotors
Advances to suppliers

P796,94/.,U2
109,697,409
41,96{,083

P504,061,556
32,234,651

tax

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment, Except Land
The estimated useful lives used as basis for depreciating the Company's property and
equipment, excluding land, were determined on the basis of management's assessment of the
period within which the benefits of these asset items are expected to be realized taking into
account actual historical information on the use of such assets.

The carrying amount of property and equipment, except land, amounted to P702,U8,357 and
P409,965,071 as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively (see Note 7).
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Recognition of Defened Iax Assefs
The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting date and
reduces deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

The management believes that the Company will not be able to realize the NOLCO in the future.
The Company provided full valuation allowance on its NOLCO, thus no deferred tax asset was
recognized as at December 31 ,2022 and 2021.

4. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Capital Management

Financial Risk Management Objgctives and Policies
The main purpose of the Company's financial instruments is to fund its operations. The
Gompany's principal finaneial instruments arising from operations eonsist of eash and cash
equivalents, receivables, accounts and other payables and advances from shareholders. The
main risks from the use of financial instruments are credit and liquidity risk.

The eompany does not have foreign currency risk because the eompany has no monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency both for 2Q22 and 2021.

The Companls BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing eaeh of these risks and
these are summarized below:

Credrt Risk
The eompany's exposure to credit risk arises from the failure on the part of its counterparg in
fulfilling its financial commitments to the Company under the prevailing contractual terms.
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist primarily of other
financial assets at amortized cost.

The carrying amounts of financial assets at amortized costs represent its maximum credit
exposure.

Other FinancialAssefs at Amoftized Cost
The Company's other financial assets at amortized cost are composed of cash in banks and time
deposits. The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing its cash only with banks that
have good credit standing and reputation in the local and international banking industry. These
instruments are graded in the top category by an acceptable credit rating agency and, therefore,
are considered to be low credit risk investments-

It is the Company's policy to measure ECL on the above instruments on a 12-month basis.
However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL.

When determining if there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort and that is
relevant fot'the partieular financial instrument being assessed sueh as, but not limited to, the
following factors:

. Actual or expected external and internal credit rating downgrade;

. Existing or forecasted adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions; and. Actual or expected significant adverse changes in the operating results of the borrower.
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The Company also considers financial assets that are more than 30 days past due to be the
latest point at which lifetime ECL should be recognized unless it can demonstrate that this does
not represent significant credit risk such as when non-payment arising from administrative
oversight rather than resulting from financial difficulty of the borrower.

The table below presents the summary of the Company's exposure to credit risk and shows the
credit quality of the assets by indicating whether the assets are subjected to 't2-month ECL or
lifetime ECL. Assets that are credit-impaired are separately presented.

December 31 2022
Financial asset at amortized cost

Lifetime ECL

- not credit Lifetime ECL

Receivables 48,000

P- P_

December 31 2021

Financial asset at amortized cost

12-month ECL

Lifetime ECL

- not credit
impaired

Lifetime ECL

- credit impaired Total

Cash in banks P85,519,715

Liquidity Risk
ln the management of liquidity, the Company monitors and maintains a level of cash deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Company's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

To meet the Company's short-term obligations and funding for the construction of its building, the
Company will call for payment of the subscription receivable from the stockholders. Also, the
Company secured from Development Bank of the Philippines a credit line facility on August 19,

2O2O as one of its sources in funding the construction of the hospital building.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial assets and liabilities
as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 based on contractual and undiscounted payments.

As at December 31,2022

P-

On Demand
Within I

year I to 5 years
More than 5

years Total

Pi n ancial liabtliti es :

Accounta and
other payables*

Retention payable

Advances from
shareholders

Loaqg payable

P3,710,992 P.
37,368,8,14

36,993,090

P-P- P3,7'10,992

37,368,844

36,993,090

5E5,000,000117,000,000 468,000,000

P3,710,992 P74,361,934 Pt17,000,000 P468,000,000 P663,072,926
*Excluding government payables amounting to P965,106 as at December 31, 2022.

P59,767,045

P- P- P85,619,715

- 48,000
P85,667,715 p- P85,667,715
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Wthin 1

year 1 to Syears
lf,ore than 5

years Total

Flnancial assets:
Cash

Receivables

P59,719,(N5

48,000

P.P-P- P59,719,045

48,000

P59,767,045 P- P- P- P59,767,045

As at December 31, 2021

On Demand
Within 1

year 1 to 5 years
More than 5

years Total

Financial liabifiies:

Accounts and
other PaYables*

Retention payable

Advances from
shareholders

Loans payable

P1,672,095 P-
40,'108,653

P-P: P1,672,095

40,'t08,653

s3,01 1,364

245,000,000

53,011,364

50,000,000 19,500,000 175,500,000

Pl,672,095 P143,120,A17 P19,500,000 P175,500,000 P339,792,112

Frnancial assets;

Cash P85,619,715 P- P- P- P85,619,715

Receivables 48,000 - - -. 48,000

P85,667,715 _ P- P- P- P85,667,715

"Excluding govemment payables amounting to P811 ,330 as at December 31, 2a21 .

Fair Values of Financial lnstruments
The historical cost carrying amounts of the Companys's financial assets and financial liabilities
are all subject to normal credit terms, and are shortterm in nature, and approximate their fair
values. Details are as fsllows:

2422 2021
Financialassefs:

Cash
Receivables

P59,7{9,045 P85,619,715
000

Accounts and other payables*
Retention payable
Advanees from shareholders

P3,710,992
37,368,844
36,993,090

P1,672,095
40,108,653
53,011,364

Loans 000

*Excluding govemment payables amounting to P965,1O0 and P811 ,330 as at December 31 , 2022 and 2A21,
respectively.

Capital Manaqement
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business, pay existing obligations and maximize
shareholder value.

The Company manages capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions, To maintain or adjust ffipitali the Gompany may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021.
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The following table pertains to the account balances the Company considers as its core
economic capital:

2022 2021 2020
Share capital
Additional paid in eapital

P215,060,000 P193,837,000 P178,756,000
200,217,50O 140,972,0A0 13,920,000

53 449

5. Advances to Contractorc

Advances to contractor represents advances for awarded project activity and is liquidated via
deduction, on a pro-rate basis from the contracto/s periodic progress billings.

Advances to contractors amounted P109,697,409 and P32,234,651 as at December 31 ,2022
and 2021, respectively.

6. Advances to Suppliers

Advanees to suppliers represents advanee payment of medieal equipment and furnitures, and
software that are not yet delivered.

Advances to suppliers amounted to P41,961,083 and nil as at December 31 ,2022 and 2O21,
respectively.

7. Property and Equipment

This account consists of:

2021 Additioqs Dispoqa! 2022
Cost:

Land
Construction in progress
Office equipment,

furniture and fixtures

P94,096,485
409,611,040

P*
292,773,621

P- P94,096,495
702,3E4,661

751,835 302,058 ,053,993I
Leasehold

Accumulated depreciation:
Office equipment,

fumiture and fixtures
Leasehold im

107

410,394 180,771
17 11 622

911 1 393

797
107
146

591,165
57
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2420 Additions Disposal 2021
Cost:
Land P94,096,485 P- P- P94,096,48S
Construction in progress 138,320,827 271,290,213 409,611,040
Office equipment

furniture and fixtures 722,235 29,600 751,835
Leasehold improvements 58,107 - - 58,107

233,197 ,654 271,319,913 - 504,517,467
Accumulated depreciation:
Office equipment

furniture and fixtures 144,447 410,394
Leasehold 11 17

842 156

Land pertains to properties located in Kalibo, Aklan with a total area of 9,500 square meters,
where its hospital building is being constructed.

Construction in progress pertains to building under construction to be used as hospital upon
completion.

Beginning 2019, the Company entered into contracts with various contractors and suppliers for
the construction of its hospital building.

As at December 31, 2022,lotal estimated cost to complete the hospital building amounted to Pl
billion, and construction is estimated to be completed by the second quarter of 2023.

As certified by construction managers, the estimated percentage of completion as at
December 31,2022 of the construction on structural works is at 100%, architectural works and
interior fit out at 20.960/o, plumbing works is at 75.04o/o, fire protection work is at 7O.Q7o/o,

eleetrieal wsrks is at 21.62%, eleetronie works is at78"20o/o, meehanieal works at 45.41o/o,
perimeter fence and road networks at 100% and site development auxiliary structures is at
45.67o/o.

Overall percentage of completion of the hospital building is at 66.93% as at December 31 ,2022.

On November 15, 2021, the Company entered into a Mortgage Agreement with Development
Bank of the Philippines (DBP) for loan and credit accommodations to finance the construction of
the hospital building and acquisition of medical instruments, furniture and appliances. The
Mortgage Agreement is secured by the land together with the building and other permanent
improvements.

The terms and conditions of the Mortgage Agreement were as follows:
a) keep the mortgaged property in good condition;
b) pay on time the lawfultaxes and assessments of the mortgaged property;
c) insure the mortgaged property;
d) the Company shall not transfer, lease, mortgage or encumber the property, or demolish or

make any alteration without first obtaining the Mortgagee's written consent.

947
895

265,

455

The carrying amount of the mortgaged property amounted to P796,481,146 as at December 31,
2022.
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There were no amount of compensations received from any third parties for items of property
and equipment that were impaired, lost or given up.

8. Accounts and Other Payables

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Accounts payable
Withholding tax payable

Pl,138,397
965,106

P1,138,397
811,330

Other 533 708

Other payables pertain to unpaid professional fees and other expenses incurred but not yet paid
as at December 31, 2O22 and 2021.

9. Retention Payable

Retention payable refers to the amount withheld by the Company from the contractor's periodic
progress billings as provided for in their respective contract. The amount will be released to the
contractor, net of deductions, if anyi upon full comBletion and final aeceptance by the eompany.

Retention payable amounted P37 ,368,844 and P40,108,653 as at December 31 , 2A22 and 2021 ,

respectively.

10. Loans Payable

2422 2A21
DBP

DBP

The Company availed long-term loans in tranches
ftom DBP. The principal amount is payable on or
before November 29, 2033. The effective interest
rate as at December 31,2022 is 5.00% per annum.
All loans are secured by the Company's real
properties (see Note 7). The loan proceeds were
used to finance the construction of the hospital
building.

The Company availed long-term loans in tranches
from DBP. The principal amount is payable on or
before November 29, 2033. The effective interest
rate as at December 31 , 2022 is 4.50% per annum.
All loans are secured by the Company's real
properties (see Note 7), The loan proceeds were
used to finance the construction of the hospital
building.

P390,000,000 P_

195,000,000 195,000,000

Forward
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2022 2021
Phil Short-term loan availed in December 2021
Pharmawealth, amounting to P50,000,000 from Phil Pharmawealth
lnc. lnc. payable after one month from execution of the

loan agreement and bearing an interest ol 4.5o/o

per annum. The loan proceed was used to finance
the construction of the hospital building and pay-off
advances used as bridge financing to construction.

50,000,000

11

Total
Less current

585,000,000 245,000,000
000

Borrowing costs amounted to P20,368,517 and P2,816,301 as at December 31,2022 and 2021,
respectively, were capitalized as cost of the hospital building.

This account eonsists of:

2022 2021 2020

Authorized share capital
600 founders' share at P1,000 par value
239,400 common share

P600,000 P600,000 P6o0,0oo

Subscribed
600 founders' share at P1,000 par value

239 000

P600.000 P600.000 P600,000

at P1 value

Balance at beginning - 209,800
common shares in2022 and 203,980
common shares in 2020 and2021

Cunent year subscription :4,660
common shares in2022 and
5,280 common shares in2021

209,800,000 203,980,000 203,980,000

4,660,000 5,820,000
Balance at end of year -214,460

common shares in 2422, 209,800
common shares in 2021 and 203,980
common shareq in 2A20

Less su receivable
214,460,000 209,800,000 203,980,000

8241

On January 26, 2021, the Company applied with the SEC for the registration of its 35,420
common shares to be sold at 10 shares per block whioh is equivalent to 3;542 bloeks. The
application was approved on June 24,202'1.
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Below are the details of registered common shares:

Date of Reqistration Number of Blocks Licensed* lssue/Offer Price Per Blockg

June 24,2021 1,942 P250,000
June 24,2021 1,200 300,000
June24,2021 400 350,000
*10 shares per block

The founders' share has the exclusive right to vote and be voted upon in the election of directors
for a limited period not to exceed five (5) years.

12. Expenses

This account consists of:

2022 2021 2024
Salaries and wages (Note 14)
Honorarium (Note 14)
Taxes and licenses
Professional fees
Depreciation (Note 7)
Rent (Notes 13 and 14)
Meetings and conferences
Office supplies
Outside services
Utilities
Advertising
SSS/PhiIHeaIth/HDMF
Trainings and seminars
Transportation and travel
Donation
Marketing
Repairs and maintenance
lnsurance
Miscellaneous

Pgi32g,g76
3,444,299
3,077,629

557,650
192,393
144,000
127,606
{,19,946
62,780
59,829
55,930
43,099
38,475
21,O31
{6,300

P6,970,050
4,800,000

10,131,599
1,511,184

156,069
144,000
41,609

111,977
84,910
48,755
46,980
27,660
30,000
96,879

8,000
35,416
'10,610

P2,476,423
5,054,500

946,892
950,834
146,1 50
144,000
45,893
49,043
56,969
24,866
13,490
22,564

314,449

6,550
292,163

017I38621

13. Lease Agreement

The Company entered into a contract of lease with a stockholder, where its office space is
located. The office space is a temporary office leased to the Company, commencing on February
28,20'18. The Company pays monthly rent of P12,000,

Rent expense charged to operations amounted to P144,000 in 2022, 2021 and 2020 (see
Note 11).

As at December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, the Company has no outstanding commitments under
non-cancellable operating leases.
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14. Related Party Disclosures

Related pafi relationships exist when one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercises significant influence over the
other party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationship also exists between
and/or among entities, whieh are under common controlwith the reporting enterprise and its key
management personnel, directors, or its shareholders.

ln considering each related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship, and not merely the legal form. Related parties may be individuals or corporate
entities.

The following are the details of related party transactions:

Terms and Amqunt of the Outstanding

Year Classification conditions Transaction Balance

shareholders unguaranteed,
noninterest
bearing, without

2021 definite call dates, (68,320,354) 53,0'11,364
and payable in

cash or thru debt-
equity conversion

2020 orfuture availment 121,331,718 121,331,718

of stock rights or
option
arrangement

ACEMC - Bacolod 2022 Loans payable Unsecured,
interest-bearing,

2021 payable in 40,000,000
installment.

2020

ACEMC'Bacolod 2022 lnterest expense

202',t 180,822

2020

Phil 2022 Loans payable Unsecured,
Pharmawealth, interest-bearing,

lnc. Payable in
installment,

2021 payable after one 50,000,000 50,000,000
month from
execution ofthe
loan agreemont.

2020

Shareholder 2022 Rent (Notes 12

,oz and 13)

2020

Unsecured,
noninterest-
bearing, payable
monthly

{44,000

144,000

144,000
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The following are other relevant related party disclosures:

ldentification Relationship Business Purpose of Arrangement Commitments

Shareholders

ACEMC - Bacolod

Pharmaweelth,

Shareholder

Phil

lnc.

Shareholder

Other related party

Other related party

Shareholder

Advanc,es from shareholders in
support for the Company's hospital
building construction requirements.

Loans from sther related party as
support for the construction of
Company's hospital building.
Loans from other related party as
support for the construction of
Company's hospital building and pay-

ofF advances used as bridge financing
to construction.

The shareholder leased a temporary
office space to the Company.

Acknowledgement
receipt

Loan agreement

Loan agreement

Lease contract
(Note 13)

2420

Compensation of Key Management Personnel
The summary of compensation of key management personnel of the Company are as follows:

2022 2421
Honorarium
Salaries and wages

P3,444,299
8,731,994

P4,800,000
6,201,500

5,054,500
2,160,000

P12,176.084 Pl 1,001,500 P7 .214.500

15. lncome Tax

There is no provision for income tax for 2022,2021 and 2020 because the Company has not yet
started commercial operation.

The following are the computations of regular corporate income tax:

2022 2021 2020
Loss before income tax
Deduct permanent difference on

lnterest income subjected to finaltax

(P17,432,363) (P24,617,960) (P10,506,926)

174,7641 (24,357\ (130,8731
Taxable loss (P17.507.U7) (P24,642,317) (P1 0,637,799)
Tax due at 25% in 2022 and 2021

and 30% in2O2O P- P- P_

As at December 31, 2022, the Company has NOLCO for taxable yea's 2022 and 2019 which can
be carried forward as a dcduction for the next three consecutive taxable years immediately
following the year of such loss, under certain conditions, as provided under Section 34(D) of the
Tax Code. Details are as follows:

Dates lncurred Amount
Applied/
Erplrsq

Remaining
Balq4ce E4jry !e!eq

December 31 2019 12 61

P- P17,507,127December 31,2022 P17,507,127 202s
2422
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As at December 31, 2022, the Company has NOLCO in taxable years2O21 and 2020 which can
be carried forward as a deduction for the next five consecutive taxable years immediately
following the year of such loss, pursuant to the Bayanihan to Recover As One Act. Details are as
follows:

Date lncurred Amount
Appliedl
Expired

Remaining
Balance Expiry Date

December 31,2021
December 31 2020

P24,642,317
10 7 799

P- P24,642,317
aI 7991

2026
2025

The management believes that the Company will not be able to realize the NOLCO in the future.
The Company provided full valuation allowance on its NOLCO, thus no deferred tax asset was
set up.

The reconeiliation of the tax eomputed at statutory tax rate to benefit from income tax follow:

2022 2021 2020
Tax at applicable statutory income tax rate
Adjustments for:

lnterest income subjected to finaltax
Uryecog414ed deferred tax asset

(P4,358,091) (P6,154,490) (P3,152,078)

(18,691)
4,176,792

(6,08e)
6,160,579

(3s,262)
3,191,340

P- P_ P-

16. Loss PerShare

Basic loss per share is computed as follows

2022 2020
Net loss
Weighted average number

(P17,432,3631 (P24,617,960) (P1 0,506,926)

of shares outstand 21 580 580

There were no common stock equivalents outstanding that would require calculation of diluted
earnings per share.

17. Ghanges in Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

The following table summarizes the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

2021 Cash flows

Noncash
financing

information 2022
Advances from shareholders
Loans

P53,011,364 (P16,018,274) P- P36,993,090

2021
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2OZA Cash ffows

Noncash
financing

information 2421

Advances from shareholders P121,331,718 (P68,320,354) p- P53,011 ,364
Loans payable - 245,000,000 - 245,000,000

p121,331,718 P176,679,646 P- P298,011,364

Noncash
financing

2019 Cash flows information 2O2A
P- P121 331 718 P- P121 331 718

18. Events After the End of the Reporting Period

No events occurred between the statements of financial position date and the date on which
these financial statements were approved by the Company's Board of Directors that would
require adjustments to or disclosure in the financial statements.

19. lmpact of Coronavirus of 2019 (COVID-l9) Update

The Company has been exposed to the risks brought about by COVID-19, a novel strain of
coronavirus, which has rapidly spread worldwide and reached a pandemic magnitude as it
continues to affect more and more countries and territories.

On March 16,2020, the President of the Philippines issued Proclamation No. 929 declaring a
state of calamity throughout the Philippines due to COVID-19 which resulted to the imposition of
an Enhanced eommunity Quarantine throughout Luzon starting midnight of March 16, 2020 until
May 15, 2020. As of to date, Province of Aklan is under Alert Level 1 quarantine classification.

The enhanced community quarantine, travel restrictions, temporary closure of different
establishments, and social distancing measures imposed by the government exposed the
Company's operations to risks that may impact its financial performance.

Due to COVID-19 outbreak, delivery of construction supplies was postponed resulting to a delay
in the construction of the hospital building.

The events surrounding the outbreak did not have a significant impact on the Company's
financial position and performance as at and for the year ended December 31,2022"
Nevertheless, the Company will continue to monitor the situation.
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20. Reclassification of Account

The following accounts in December 31, 2021 have been reclassified to conform with the
Decem ber 31, 2A22 f i nancial statement p resentatio n :

Reclassified From Reclassified To Amount
Advances to contractors

(under receivables)
Retention payable

(under accounts and

other payables)

Advances to contractors
(presented under other current assets)

Retention payable

(presented under current liabilities)

P32,234,651

40,108,653

21. Supplementa! Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 and 19-2011

Revenue Resulation 1 *201 0
On November 25, 2010, the BIR issued Revenue Regulation (RR) 15-2010, which requires
ce(ain information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or acorued during the taxable year to
be disclosed as part of the notes to financial statements. These supplemental information, which
are aclditions to the disclosures required under PFRS, are presented as follows:

The Company has not yet started commercial operations and did not incur the following taxes:
a. VAT output tax
b. VAT input tax
c. Taxes on impoftation
d. Excise fax

Documentary Stamp Tax
The Company paid documentary stamp tax (DST) in 2022 and 2021 amounting to P2,985,300
and P5,507,420, respectively, for issuance of capital stock and availment of loan.

Iaxes and Licenses
The details of taxes and licenses included in expenses are as follows:

2022 2421 2020
Documentary stamp tax
Real property tax
SEC filing fees
Land reg istration authority
Others

P2,985,300
72,304
20,o25

P5,507,420
64,270
3,515

4,546,527

P_
74,313

868,620

Withholding laxes
The following are the amounts of withholding taxes:

2022

I

2021

959

2020
Creditable - at source P5,775,188 P4,518,291 P1,ggg,55g

I 1 7 561 984taxes on com 1

Defi eie n ey lax Assessmenf
The Company does not have any deficiency tax assessments with BIR or tax cases outstanding
or pending in courts or bodies outside of the BIR as of December 31,2022.
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Revenue Reoulatian 1 9-201 1

Revenue Regulation No. 19-2011 was issued to prescribe the new BIR forms that will be used for
lncome Tax filing covering and starting with December 31 ,2011, and to modify Revenue
Memorandum Circular No. 57-2011 dated November 25,2011.

The following are the schedules prescribed under existing revenue issuances applicable to the
Company as of December 31 ,2022

Revenue
The Company has not yet started commercial operations and did not earn any revenue

Cosf of Sales
The Company has not yet started commercial operations and did not incur any cost of sales.

Non-operating and Taxable Other lncome
The Company has not yet started commercial operations and did not earn non-operating and
taxable other income.

Itemized Deductions
Details of the Company's itemized deductions for the year are as follows

Exempt RCIT
Salaries and wages
Honorarium
Taxes and licenses
Professional fees
Depreciation
Rent
Meetings and conferences
Office supplies
Outside services
Utilities
Advertising
SSSi PhiIHeaIth/HDMF
Trainings and seminars
Transportation and travel
Donation
Miscellaneous

P- P9,329,976
3,444,200
3,477,629

557,650
192,393
144,000
127,606
119,946
62,784
59,828
55,930
43,088
38,475
21,031
16,300

216,295

Taxes and Licenses
Taxes, fees and charges presented as part of "Expenses" account in the Company's statements;
of comprehensive income include the following:

E&rnpl RCIT
Documentary stamp tax
Real property tax

P- P2,985,300
72,304

SEC filin fees 025



Mendoza Querido & Co.
16th Floor, The Salcedo Towers
169 H.V. de la Costa St.. Salcedo Village
Makati City 1227 Philippines
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PRC/BOA Accreditation No. 0966
September 22,2020, valid until
August 22,2023

SEC Accreditation No- 0966-SEC (Group A)
lssued November 24, 2O2O
Valid for Financial Periods 2O2O Io 2O24

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
ON SUPPLEIV|ENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Asia Pacific Medical Center (APMC) - Aklan lnc.
(Formerly Allied Care Experls (ACE) Aledical Center - Aklan lnc.)
Aklan Polyclynic and Drugstore, Goding Ramos Street
Kalibo, Aklan

We have audited In accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of
Asia Pacific [,4edical Center (APMC)- Aklan lnc. (formerly Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center
- Aklan lnc.) (the Company) as at December 31 ,2022 and 2021 and for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated April 25, 2A23. Aur
audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules required by paragraph 7, Part ll of Revised
Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68 (2019) (Annex 68-J), Reconciliation of Retained Earnings
Available for Dividend Declaration, Map of the Relationships Between and Among the Companies in
the Group, its Ultimate Parent and Co-subsidiaries, and Schedule of Financial Soundness lndicators
are the responsibility of the Company's management. These schedules are presented for purposes
of complying with Revised SRC Rule 68 (2019), and are not part of the basic financial statements.
These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the information required
to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

For the firm: MENDOZA QUERIDO & CO.

RICHARD S. OUERIDO
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 84807
SEC Accreditation No. 84807-SEC (Group A)

lssued November 24, 2020
Valid for Financial Periods 202A b 2024

TtN 102-094-633
Bl R Accreditation No. 08-00261 7 -002-2022

January 25,2022, valid until January 24,2025
PTR No. 9569440, January 7, 2023, Makati City

April25, 2023



ASIA PACTFIC MEDTCAL CENTER (APMC) - AKLAN tNC.
(Formerly Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center - Aklan lnc.)
Schedule A- Financial Assets
December 31,2022

Name of lssuing Entity and
Association of

Each lssue

Number of
Shares

or Principal
Amounts of

Bonds
and Notes

Amount
Shown in the
Statement of

Financial
Position

Value based
on Market

Quotations at
End of

Reporting
Period

lncome
Received and

Accrued

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in banks Not applicable P59,719,045 Not applicable P74,764



ASIA pACrFrC MEDTCAL CENTER (APMC) - AKLAN tNC.
Allied Care Medical Center - Aklan

B - Amounts
and Principal Stockholderc (Other than Related Parties)

December 31,2422

Name and Balance at
Designation Beginning
of Debtor of Period Additions

Amounts
Written Off Current

Balance at
End of

Not Current Period
Amounts
Collected

Not applicable



ASIA PACIF|C MEDTCAL CENTER (APMC) - AKLAN lNC.
(Formerly Allied Care Expefts (ACE) Medical Center - Aklan lnc.)
Schedule C - Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are
Eliminated during the Consolidation of Financial Statements

December 31,2022

Name and Balance at
Designation Beginning
of Debtor of Period Additions

Amounts
Written Off Current

Balance at
End of

Not Current Period
Amounts
Collected

Not applicable



ASIA pACrFrC MEDTCAL CENTER (APMC) - AKLAN tNC.
(Formerly Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center - Aklan lnc.)
Schedule D - Long Term Debt
December 31,2022

Title of lssue and Type Amount Authorized by

Amount shown under
caption "Current portion

of long-term debt" in
related Statement of

Financial Position

Amount shown uncler
caption "Long-Term

Debt" in related
Statement of Financial

Positionre

erm
of



AS|A PACTFTC MEDTCAL CENTER (APMC) - AKLAN lNG.
Allied Care Medical Center - Aklan

Schedule E - to erm
December 31,2022

Name of related party Balance at nning of Period Balance at End of Period
Not applieable



AS|A PACIFIC MEDTCAL CENTER (APMC) - AKLAN rNC.
(Formerly Allied Care Experts (ACE) Medical Center - Aklan lnc.)
Schedule F - Guarantees of Securities and Other Issues
December 31,2022

Name of Issuing
Entity of Securities
Guaranteed by the
Company for which

this Statement is
Filed

Title of issue of
each Class of

Securities
Guaranteed

TotalAmount
Guaranteed and

Outstanding

Amount Owned by
Person for which

Statement is Filed
Nature of

Guarantee
Not applicable



r.-
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AS|A PACIFIC MEDTCAL CENTER (APMC) - AKLAN tNC.
Allied Care

December 31,2422

Medical Center - Aklan

Number of
Shares

Reserved for
Options,

Warrants,
Conversions,

and Other
Rishts

Title of
lssue

Number of
Shares

Authorized

Number of
Shares

lssued and
Outstanding
under related
Statement of

Financial
Position
caption

Related
Parties

Directors,
Officers and
Employees Others

Number of Shares Held By

Founder
Common

600 600 230 374
21 460 77 136

1
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ASIA PAC|FIC MEDTCAL CENTER (APMC) - AKLAN tNC.
(Formerly Allied Care Expefts (ACE) Medical Center - Aklan lnc.)
RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR

DIVIDEND DECLARATION
DECEMBER 31,2422

Deficit, beginning

Net loss during the period

(P53,448,520)

(17,432,363,

DEFICIT, END (P70,880,883)



ASIA pACrFrC MEDTCAL CENTER (APMC) - AKLAN lNC.
Allied Care

Schedule of Financial
December 31, 2A22 and 2421

Medical Center - Aklan
ness n eators

Ratio Formula 2022 2021

Current ratio Current Assets
Current Liabilities

2.68:1 0.81:1

Acid test ratio Currq 11t {qsqlq - P_tepqym e$s
Cunent Liabiltties

0.76:l 0.59:1

Solvency ratio N4@
Total Liabilities

-0.03:1 -0.07:1

Debt-to-equity ratio
Total Liabilities

TotalEquity
1.93;1 1.21:1

Asset-to-equity ratio TotalAssets
TotalEquity

2.93:1 2.21:1

lnterest rate coverage
ratio

Operating EBITDA
Net lnterest

-0.86:1 -8.83:1

Return on assets
Net lncome

Average TotalAssets
-2.14% -5.39%

Return on equity
Net lncome

Average Total Equity
-5.57% -11.06%

Net profit margin
Net lncome

Total Revenue
AY, 0%

Operating EBITDA
margin

Operating EBITDA
Net Revenue

0% n0/-
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Firm Profile



Our policy is to be regarded 

by clients as the first port of 

call for all their business 

and personal finance 

decisions.

Mendoza Querido & Co. (M&Q) is a progressive professional services firm in the Philippines. The firm was

founded during the early 2000 by Mr. Emmanuel Y. Mendoza and Mr. Richard Querido. The firm provides

integrated solutions that draw diverse and deep competencies in assurance, tax, risk consulting and

corporate finance.

About Mendoza Querido & Co.

1



Accreditation

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) – Group A

Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)

Board of Accountancy (BOA)

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB)

Professional Organizations

Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountant (PICPA)

Tax Management Association of The Philippines, Inc. (TMAP)

Association of Certified Public Accountants in Public Practice (ACPAPP)

Our policy is to be regarded 

by clients as the first port of 

call for all their business 

and personal finance 

decisions.

About Mendoza Querido & Co.
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Client Industry

Our policy is to be regarded 

by clients as the first port of 

call for all their business 

and personal finance 

decisions.

• Banking

• Beef Cattle Farming

• Brokerage

• Call Center

• Computer Repair/Wholesaling

• Condominium

• Construction

• Consultancy

• Cultural Activities

• Development and Export of 

Software Application

• Distribution

• Education

• Facilities Enterprise

• Financial Holding

• Financing

• Food

• Foundation

• General Professional Partnership

• Healthcare

• Holding Company

• Hydropower Developer

• Insurance

• Insurance Adjusters

• IT Related Services

• Laser Cutting

• Leasing

• Life/Non-life Insurance

• Management Consultancy

• Management Services

• Manning Agency

• Manufacturing

• Agriculture / Manufacturing

• Medical Clinic

• Mining

• Outsourcing

• Professional Association

• Project Developer

• Real Estate

• Real Estate Broker / Leasing

• Regional Operating Headquarter

• Rental

• Representative Office

• Retirement Fund

• Service

• Software Provider

• Stock Broker

• Talent Agency

• Telecommunication

• Trading

• Village Association

About Mendoza Querido & Co.
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Services Provided

M&Q is a full service firm providing assurance, tax, financial advisory and consulting services to private and

publicly listed companies. We provide quality service and leadership through the active involvement of our

most experienced and committed professionals.

Every M&Q client is supported by a team of individuals with a diverse mix of skills and expertise. The result

is an enhanced set of resources channelled by our partners to focus on your needs. The solutions M&Q

delivers must meet our own standards of quality: timely, accurate, responsive and thorough.Our policy is to be regarded 

by clients as the first port of 

call for all their business 

and personal finance 

decisions.

About Mendoza Querido & Co.
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Audit and assurance

• External audit of financial statements

• Other assurance and attestation services

Business and advisory

• Business consulting

• Strategic planning

Outsourcing

• Accounting and bookkeeping services

• Compilation of financial statements

• Financial forecasting and modelling

• Management reporting

• Payroll processing

Business restructuring and insolvency

Corporate finance and advisory

• Financial due diligence

• Valuations

• Initial public offerings

• Mergers and acquisitions

Forensic and litigation support

• commercial and contractual disputes and 

mediation involving business or share 

valuations;

• expert witness and quantification of loss; 

and

• forensic investigations, particularly in 

relation to fraud claims, tax investigations 

and asset tracing.

Governance, risk and internal audit

• corporate governance

• controls assurance

• internal audit.

Taxation

• Tax compliance and advisory service

• Tax assessments

• Tax refund assistance

• Tax compliance



Key to providing you with the type of service you deserve are the relationships formed, at all levels, 

between our people and yours.

Our philosophy when working with you will be to ensure that your needs are our priority, and it is this principle which

will form the basis of our relationship. Mendoza Querido & Co. is a people focused business and client relationships

are partner-led. Each member of the core team will have sufficient knowledge of your business to provide you with the

support you require.

EMMANUEL Y. MENDOZA – Managing Partner

Mr. Mendoza is currently the Managing Partner of Mendoza Querido and Co., he started his career and spent 10 years
with the Financial Services Group of the leading accounting firm in the Philippines, SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co (SGV).
He was the Deputy Managing Partner of a local accounting firm and headed the Business Consulting and Tax Group
for three years. He has extensive experience in auditing financial institutions, as well as in due diligence review for
mergers and acquisitions, bond offerings, initial public offerings and investment valuation. On several occasions, he
was commissioned by the Court of Tax Appeals as an independent certified public accountant tasked to verify the
voluminous supporting documents of Companies seeking for tax refund on their unutilized input tax credit. He has also
prepared tax manuals for certain clients. Aside from his exposure to public practice, he was also directly involved in
banking operations, as First Vice President and Financial Controller of Global Business Bank (GLOBALBANK), an
affiliate of Metrobank and the Tokai Bank of Japan.

He is an Independent Director of the Philippine Bank of Communication and Chairman of Bank’s Audit Committee.

Qualifications & professional affiliations

Bachelor in Business Administration (BBA) in Accountancy, University of the Philippines 

Master in Management, Asian Institute of Management

Member, Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountant

Accredited External Auditor, Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)

Accredited External Auditor, Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)

Professional Experience

31 Years

People
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RICHARD S. QUERIDO – Partner

Mr. Querido started his career and spent 10 years with SGV&Co. and 3 years as a Partner in a local accounting firm.

He performed audit and business advisory services of various companies in the fields of food processing and

distribution, financial markets, manufacturing and distribution of consumer products and garments,

telecommunications, real estate, hotels, and airlines, among others.

He managed various local and international engagements, including operations review and tax planning Mr. Querido

participated extensively in a due diligence review for a cross border listing in the Singapore Stock Exchange.

Qualifications & professional affiliations

Bachelor in Accountancy, Polytechnic University of the Philippines

Certified Internal Auditor

Member, Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountant

Member, Tax Management Association of the Philippines (TMAP)

Member, Association of Certified Public Accountants in Public Practice (ACPAPP)

Accredited External Auditor, Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)

Accredited External Auditor, Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)

Professional Experience

28 Years

People
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JEKELL G. SALOSAGCOL – Technical Consultant

Mr. Salosagcol a former staff auditor in the leading accounting firm in the Philippines, SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.
(SGV&Co.) from 1995 to 1996. Performed financial audits for different clients, most of which are in the banking and
telecommunication industry. He is a former consultant of Independent Oil Price Review Committee – Department of
Energy and Vice president for US Operations in Theorem Global Business Outsourcing Inc.

Presently he works as a lecturer and reviewer for leading university and review schools in the country. He also served
as a resource speaker at the Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in-house seminar provider for
corporate clients such as Manila Electric Company, Commission on Audit, Bureau of Treasury, Bureau of Internal
Revenue, Asian Institute of Taxation, Accenture Philippines, Dole Philippines, Philippines Association of Local
Government Accountants and National Institute of Accounting Technician. Moreover he is currently the technical
and training consultant of Mendoza Querido & Co., he is also the Audit and PFRS consultant of Government
Service Insurance System (GSIS) and Consultant of ORT Consulting Group LLC in Chicago USA.

He has authored two books: with Petronilo Santos on Basic Auditing Theory and Concepts; and A guide in
understanding the Philippine Standards on Auditing which has been reprinted for its second & third editions.

Qualifications & professional affiliations

Bachelor in Accountancy, Technological Institute of the Philippines

Member, Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountant

Professional Experience

23 Years

People
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MA. ANTONETTE A. DIEL – Partner

Antonette works closely with the management team overseeing the Audit and General Accounting Services by actively 

supervising the team environment as a whole.

As Senior Director with over 15 years of experience, she oversees the overall planning, supervision, and review of the 

attestation and business advisory engagements of high-risk to low-risk engagements. She reviews the reports and its 

related working papers before the final review of the partner. She also oversees the team's discussion on engagement 

projects, and discusses the reports or other required deliverables with client's management.

Antonette also assists in the due diligence, agreed-upon procedures, and other special projects of the firm which 

include, but not limited to, the review and preparation of the schedules, exhibits, annexes, and other required 

reports. Furthermore, she assists in the preparation of documentary requirements for registration of corporations, as 

well as the transfer of corporate stocks.

She is a certified public accountant (CPA). She is an active member of both the Philippine Institute of Certified Public 

Accountants (PICPA) and Association of Certified Public Accountants in Public Practice (ACPAPP).

People
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EPHRAIM T. TUGANO – Partner

Ephraim is a certified public accountant (CPA) with more than eight years of experience in public accounting covering 

assurance and non-assurance services. He has a wide industry domain experience in manufacturing, retail, 

pharmaceutical, services, mining, hotels and casinos, real estate, regional operating headquarters, foundations, and 

non-profit organisations.

He acted as manager on several audit engagements with private entities, including audits of projects funded by the 

European Union (EU). He performed several due diligence exercises and participated in purchase price allocations, 

goodwill valuation and impairment testing of different entities.

He also has experience in accounting and consulting assignments and was involved in the migration of accounting 

records for the implementation of a computerized accounting system.

He is currently a member of the Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants (PICPA).

People
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JOVEN M. BENITEZ – Director

Joven works closely with the partner, co-directors, managers, and supervisors. The main area of his responsibility is 

the administration and infrastructure of the team. His specific duties include the management of the team, and all 

aspects of human resources including workflow management. As director, he ensures the general smooth running of 

the organisation. He also assesses whether entities perform planning, accounting, custodial, and control activities in 

compliance with management instructions, applicable procedures, and in a manner consistent with both organisational

objectives and high ethical standards.

Joven is working with the management team. His position also contributes to the development and implementation of 

organisational strategies, policies and practices.

His notable work experience was being the project head in agreed-upon procedures wherein he performed 100% 

nationwide inventory count of goods and fixed assets of a major amusement center and international cigarette 

manufacturing company. His involvement covered preparation of analytical reports, documentation of discrepancies 

encountered during the count, and the recommendation on the goods and fixed assets management that helps to 

improve proper accounting and safeguarding of goods and fixed assets as well as the disposition on the obsolete and 

idle fixed assets.

Joven is a holder of Masters of Business in Business Management from St. Scholastica's College – Manila and 

Bachelor of Science in Accountancy from Divine Word College of Legazpi. He is an active supporter of the United 

Nations High Commissioner for Refugees (UNHCR), the UN Refugee Agency.
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RUBY ANNE Q. QUITORIANO– Director

Ruby Anne has over 13 years of experience in the audit profession. She has been auditing numerous small to 

medium-sized privately-owned companies, publicly-listed companies, and multinational corporations from a wide range 

of industries, including trading and retail, manufacturing, shipping and logistics, construction and real estate, 

information technology, and hospitality and services.

Ruby Anne manages and increases the effectiveness and efficiency of audit services and quality assurance through 

improvements to each function as well as coordination and communication between support and business functions.

Her directorial function covers not only audits but also extends to accounting services. She oversees the work of the 

accounting staff in the recording of transactions and preparation of accounting reports, financial statements, and 

government reporting requirements.

Ruby Anne is a cum laude from the University of the Northern Philippines with a degree of Bachelor of Science in 

Accountancy.
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Should you require further clarifications, please contact us for
personal assistance.

Emmanuel Y. Mendoza

Managing Partner

E: eymendoza@mqc.com.ph

T: +632 8887 1888

16th Floor Salcedo Towers

169 H.V. dela Costa Street, Salcedo Village

Makati City 1221

For more information
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ANNEX “G “ 

MANAGEMENT REPORT AS OF JUNE 30, 2023 

A. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 

Asia Pacific Medical Center - Aklan Inc. (formerly known as Allied Care Experts Medical Center – 

Aklan Inc.) is a stock corporation duly organized and registered under the laws of the Republic of 

the Philippines and granted corporate existence by the Securities and Exchange Commission on 06 

December 2017. 

The company was established to maintain, operate, own, and manage hospitals, medical and 

related healthcare facilities and businesses such as, but without restriction to clinical laboratories, 

diagnostic centers, ambulatory clinics, condo hospitals, scientific research and other allied 

undertakings and services which shall provide medical, dental, nursing, therapeutic, paramedic, or 

similar care, provided that purely professional, medical or dental services shall be performed by duly 

qualified physicians or dentists who may or may not be connected with the hospitals and whose 

services shall be freely and individually contracted by the patients.  

To support the construction of its first project, the company applied for a secondary license for the 

issuance of securities. It was issued its Permit to Offer Securities on 29 June 2021 thru SEC MSRD 

Order No. 36 Series of 2021. 

As of July 15, 2023, the total percentage of completion of the construction of the multi-disciplinary 

hospital constructed by the Company is 88.57s%. 

It is the mission of APMC-AI to set up a Level 2 Health Care facility with an organized, systematic, 
cost-effective, sympathetic and holistic approach to its goal in providing the best quality and 
justifiable medical services to its clients and stakeholders.  
 
APMC-AI will accomplish its purpose by the acquisition of complete and world-class facilities, 
provide service through medical specialists who are competent and fully qualified in their line of 
work, and have equally efficient well motivated employees and management staff. 
 
Asia Pacific Medical Center – Aklan Inc. will be a 7-storey, 216-bed capacity hospital with a roof 
deck. A total of 192 available parking slots in a total floor area of 33,522.36 sq. m. constructed in a 
9,656 sq. m. property located at Judge Martelino Road, Barangay Andagao, Kalibo, Aklan. It will 
provide services to residents of Kalibo, Aklan, nearby Barangays and Municipalities, and even to 
the neighboring provinces which are considered its catchment areas. APMC-AI will be a 
multidisciplinary specialty medical facility that will house medical specialists who are subscribers to 
the capital stock of the Corporation. The intended and considered markets for its shares are mostly 
medical specialists and individuals who are related to the medical specialists. 
 
The issuer belongs to the industry which caters to the need of the public and medical, surgical and 

dental specialist for hospital facilities. There are no recognized trends within such an industry. The 

geographic area of competition is in Bacolod City wherein the following Hospitals are operating: 

Saint Gabriel Medical Center, Saint Jude Hospital, Aklan Cooperative Mission Hospital, Panay 

Health Care Multipurpose Cooperative Hospital and Dr. Rafael S. Tumbokon Memorial Hospital. 
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NAME OF 
HOSPITAL 

ADDRESS 
BED 

CAPACITY 
CATEGORY 

LEVEL OF 
CLASSIFICATION 

Saint Gabriel Medical 
Center 

GM Reyes 
Street, 

Kalibo, Aklan 
120 Private 2 

Saint Jude Hospital 
F. Quimpo 

Street, 
Kalibo, Aklan 

25 Private 1 

Aklan Cooperative 
Mission Hospital 

Andagao, 
Kalibo, Aklan 

50 Private 1 

Panay Health Care 
Multipurpose 

Cooperative Hospital 

Estancia, 
Kalibo, Aklan 

100 Private 2 

Dr. Rafael S. 
Tumbokon Memorial 

Hospital 

Mabini Street, 
Kalibo, Aklan 

300 Public 2 

 

The strategic location of Asia Pacific Medical Center-Aklan Inc. primarily influences the decision of 
the medical specialists to subscribe to the shares of stock in Asia Pacific Medical Center –Aklan Inc. 
Once the Doctor decides where to practice, price and quality of facility management come as the 
next factors. Good location, proximity to patients, reasonableness of the offer price and quality of 
the facilities enable Asia Pacific Medical Center-Aklan Inc. to effectively compete with its competitors 
within the area. 
 
APMC-AI is primarily owned and managed by doctor specialists who have established medical 
practice in the locality. This unique set up is a strong strategic factor of the hospital since each 
doctor-owner has established patient following in their respective fields. Furthermore, the roster of 
local medical practitioners who have signified their commitment to the hospital is very significant. 
 
The company places itself as a center for Clinical Competence and Patient Safety. Among its 

flagship plans, will be the creation of a High-Risk Pregnancy and Infertility Center, Wellness and 

Aesthetic Center, Eye Center, Oncology Center and Transfusion Unit, Cardiovascular and 

Pulmonary Center, Kidney Transplant Center and among other services, the hospital is preparing 

to build a Neuro-laboratory and Nutrition and Dietetics. 

The hospital will also offer both preventive and medical treatment packages at a very competitive 
cost, if not lesser than the nearby hospital facilities, without compromising the quality of healthcare 
service it delivers to its patients. The hospital will also make sure that by following the policies of the 
Credentialing and Privileging Committee, the medical staff of APMC-Aklan Inc. are clinically 
competent and certified specialists.  
 
Aside from these, patients will find a better ambiance with Asia Pacific Medical Center-Aklan Inc. 
due to its carefully planned, designed, constructed hospital building. Its advantage is not simply its 
newly built structure, but it also boasts of new facilities and equipment, plus the competency of its 
Medical Specialists. 
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Suppliers and Major Contractors 

The main contractor of the hospital is TRASS Construction Co. Inc. which is based in Cebu 

City. Some of the major suppliers for this project are as follows: Interior Designer Ms. Kathleen 

Fritzie D. Grey, Synchronized Solutions for Electronics and Auxiliary Works, JRDM Builders 

Corp. for Mechanical Works, RMT for Electrical Works and 24 Inch Gauge Construction Inc. for 

Plumbing and Fire Protection Works. 

  

The aforementioned contractors are suppliers of goods and services relating to the construction 

of the hospital building. 

 
Transactions with and/or Dependence on Related Parties 

The Company, in the normal course of business, has entered into transactions with related parties 

principally consisting of: 

  

Advances from Shareholders 

  

This account represents advances made by its shareholders in support of the Company’s building 

construction requirements. These advances are non-interest bearing and to be paid subject to 

availability of funds and/or the Board may decide to convert said advances to equity in the distant 

future. Advances from shareholders amounted to P131,550,384.14 as of June 30, 2023. 

 

B. SECURITIES OF THE REGISTRANT 

Market Price 

Asia Pacific Medical Center-Aklan Inc. will market and offer its securities through its salaried 
employee/s who will act as salesmen. These organic employee/s are well aware of the mission and 
vision of the Hospital and are accustomed with Hospital operations. Management believes that the 
strategic location of the Hospital, the facilities and the services it will provide, and the people behind 
the Hospital, are sufficient to entice medical specialists and prospective investors to consider the 
offer. APMC-AI will greatly rely on these organic salesmen and the satisfied patients to spread the 
word about the facilities the Hospital can offer. 
 
Asia-Pacific Medical Center - Aklan Inc. (formerly known as Allied Care Experts Medical Center – 

Aklan Inc.) is offering 3,542 blocks of common shares in tranches, through a series of offerings at 

an offer price in progressive amounts. 

The staggered Offer Price per series of shares for sale to the public was arrived at by considering 

several factors including but not limited to: the timing of purchase relative to the completion of the 

Hospital and its facilities, the number of applicants the Hospital could serve and accommodate, the 

total development costs based on cost assessments of the engineers, architects and other 

professionals hired for the project, comparable price of similarly situated structure with similar 

facilities, market demand, risk undertaken by the original stockholders, the exclusive and premium 

nature of the Hospital and its intended patients and the acceptability of the pricing strategy to the 

current market. 
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The breakdown of the Offer Price is presented as follows: 

 
Number of Blocks Maximum Proposed Series of 

Common Shares Selling Price per block 
 

1
st 

1,942 blocks Php 250,000per block 

2
nd 

1,200 blocks Php 300,000 per block 

3
rd 

400 blocks Php 350,000 per block 

 

The first 1,048 blocks had been sold at the price of Php 250,000.00 per block by the third quarter of 

2021 until August of 2022. The 2nd and 3rd series will never be offered until the 1st series had been 

sold out. The offered shares are not listed in the Exchange and are issued over the counter only, 

through the Company’s employees acting a salesperson as reflected in its Registration Statement. 

The percentage of public ownership of the Company as of December 31, 2022 is 5%. 

 

The 3600 blocks that were offered to the public are sold primarily to Medical Specialists who possess 

the minimum qualifications and are deemed fit to practice, upon recommendation by the credentials 

Committee and approved by the Board and Management of APMC- Aklan Inc. Other purchasers 

are non-medical specialists who are related to medical specialists and those who purchased the 

shares purely for investment purposes.   

 

Holders 

There are approximately 40 founders  and 1013 holders of Common Shares of the company as of 

July 27, 2023. 

 

Dr. Ferjenel G. Biron is the only record and/or beneficial owner of more than 5% of any class of 
registrant’s voting securities as of July 27, 2023.  

 

Class Names / 
Address of 

Record 
Owner 

Name of 
Beneficial 

Owner/Relatio
nship with 

Record Owner 

Citizenship Number 
of 

Shares 
Held 

% to Total 
Outstanding 

Shares 

Commo
n 
 

Founder 

Biron, 
Ferjenel G. 
/82 Firefly 
cor. Butterfly 
St., Valle 
Verde VI, 
Pasig City 

Biron, Ferjenel 
G. / Record 
Owner is also 
Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 33,890 
 

110 

 
15.81% 
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The following founders are the top 20 stockholders of record and/or beneficial owners as of July 27, 
2023: 

 

Class Name/ 
Address of 
Record 
Owner 

Name of 
Beneficial Owner/ 
Relationship with 

Record Owner 

Citizenship Number 
of 

Shares 
Held 

(%) Total 
Outstandin
g Shares 

Common 
 

Founder 

Biron, 
Ferjenel G./ 
82 Firefly cor. 
Butterfly St., 
Valle Verde 
VI, Pasig City 

Biron, Ferjenel G./ 
Record Owner is 
also Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 33,890 
 

110 

15.81% 

Common 
 

Founder 

Perez, Claire 
B./ 0248 
Acevedo St., 
Kalibo, Aklan 
 

Perez, Claire B./ 
Record Owner is 
also Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 10,170 
 

30 

4.74% 

Common 
 

Founder 
 

Alfaro, Ma. 
Ester L./ 
Nalook 
Kalibo, Aklan 

Alfaro, Ma. Ester L./ 
Record Owner is 
also Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 6,780 
 

20 

3.16% 

Common 
 

Founder 

Arce, Maribel 
J./ Arce 
Compound, 
1021 Roxas 
Ave. Ext., 
Andagao, 
Kalibo, Aklan 

Arce, Maribel J./ 
Record Owner is 
also Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 6,780 
 

20 

3.16% 

Common 
 

 Founder 

Arce, Simeon 
A./ Arce 
Compound, 
1021 Roxas 
Ave. Ext., 
Andagao, 
Kalibo, Aklan 

Arce, Simeon A./ 
Record Owner is 
also Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 6,780 
 

20 

3.16% 

Common 
 

Founder 

Buenaflor, 
Regina R./ 
Sitio San 
Antonio, 
Mangan, 
Banga, Aklan 

Buenaflor, Regina 
R./ Record Owner 
is also Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 6,780 
 

20 

3.16% 

Common  
 

Founder 

Buenaflor, 
Patrick 
Dexter M./ 
Sitio San 
Antonio, 
Mangan, 
Banga, Aklan 

Buenaflor, Patrick 
Dexter M./ Record 
Owner is also 
Beneficial Owner 

Filipino 10,170 
 

30 

4.74% 

Common 
 

Founder 

Daulo-
Lavilla, 
Meride/Lot 
11 Block 6 

Daulo-Lavilla, 
Meride/ Record 
Owner is also 
Beneficial Owner 

Filipino 6,790 
 

10 

3.16% 
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Phase I, 
Pasacao St., 
Puerto Real 
Subd., 
Lapaz, Iloilo 
City  

Common 
 

Founder 

Dignadice, 
Marymil B./ 
060 Tigayon, 
Kalibo, Aklan 

Dignadice, Marymil 
B./ Record Owner 
is also Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 6,780 
 

20 

3.16% 

Common 
 
Founder 

Isidro, 
Jessore 
I./#33 Maple 
Road 
Mckinley Hill 
Village,Tagui
g NCR Fourth 
District 

Isidro, Jessore 
I./Record Owner is 
also Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 6,780 
 

20 

3.16% 

Common 
 

Founder 

Torres, Peter 
Myron Jun 
O./ Vizcarra 
Subd., 
Kalibo, Aklan  

Torres, Peter 
Myron Jun O./ 
Record Owner is 
also Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 6,780 
 

20 

3.16% 

Common 
 

Founder 
 

Abril, Joanne 
B./ 731 Pook 
Interior, 
Kalibo, Aklan 

Abril, Joanne B./ 
Record Owner is 
also Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 3,390 
 

10 

1.58% 

Common 
 

Founder 

Ardeña, 
Gregory 
Joseph Ryan 
A./ #78 Villa 
Ester Subd., 
New 
Buswang, 
Kalibo, Aklan 

Ardeña, Gregory 
Joseph Ryan 
A./Record Owner is 
also Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 3,390 
 

10 

1.58% 

Common 
 

Founder 

Quintana-
Bartolome, 
Delphine 
Joanne 
C./299 J. 
Isberto Rd., 
Tigayon, 
Kalibo, Aklan 

Quintana-
Bartolome, 
Delphine Joanne 
C./ Record Owner 
is also Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 3,390 
 

10 

1.58% 

Common 
 

Founder 

Conanan-
Morato, 
Marsha 
Lourdes P./ 
Hacienda 
Caridad 
Subdivision, 
Tigayon, 
Kalibo, Aklan 

Conanan-Morato, 
Marsha Lourdes P./ 
Record Owner is 
also Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 3,390 
 

10 

1.58% 
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Common 
 

Founder 

Debuque, 
Eileen May 
B./ Osmeña 
Avenue, 
Tigayon, 
Kalibo, Aklan 

Debuque, Eileen 
May B./ Record 
Owner is also 
Beneficial Owner 

Filipino 3,390 
 

10 

1.58% 

Common 
 

Founder 

Francisco, 
Nikki James 
C./ #214 
Querico 
Romero Rd. 
Linabuan 
Norte, Kalibo, 
Aklan 

Francisco, Nikki 
James C./ Record 
Owner is also 
Beneficial Owner 

Filipino 3,390 
 

10 

1.58% 

Common 
 

Founder 

Icamina, 
Mary Karen 
Veronica R./ 
Archbishop 
Reyes St. 
Kalibo, Aklan 

Icamina, Mary 
Karen Veronica R./ 
Record Owner is 
also Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 3,390 
 

10 

1.58% 

Common 
 

Founder 

Quimpo, 
Raymundo 
R./ 645 
Osmeña 
Avenue, 
Brgy. 
Estancia, 
Kalibo, Aklan 

Quimpo, 
Raymundo R./ 
Record Owner is 
also Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 3,390 
 

10 

1.58% 

Common 
 

Founder 

Quindor, 
Darcy A./ 
#660 
Mabulay Rd., 
Brgy. 
Linabuan 
Norte, Kalibo, 
Aklan 

Quindor, Darcy A./ 
Record Owner is 
also Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino 3,390 
 

10 

1.58% 

 
 
The company is not yet operating its hospital hence there is no unrestricted retained earnings that 

could be used for dividends. 

 

RECENT SALE OF UNREGISTERED OR EXEMPT SECURITIES  

There has been no recent sale of unregistered or exempt securities as all of the Two 

Hundred Forty Thousand issued shares (240,000) of the Company are registered securities. 
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C. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD & A) or PLAN OF OPERATION AS 

OF 30 JUNE 2023 

 

Plan of Operation 

Hospital construction is targeted to be complete in the second quarter of 2023 and hospital 

operation is set to start anytime during the third quarter of the same year. 

Financial requirements of the corporation during the next twelve (12) months stem from the 

completion of the hospital structure including its interiors, procurement of additional hospital 

equipment and additional salaries for the expected increase in manpower during the start 

of the hospital operation.  Hiring for the needed employees will commence about three (3) 

months prior to the target starting date of operation which will be set for the orientation and 

training of both the medical and paramedical staff. 

Current financial position depends on the infusion of capital from the remaining shares from 

IPO and the loan facility granted by Development Bank of the Philippines.  With the 

increasing demands especially that completion target has been set, the corporation must 

maximize all means to market and sell offered shares to the public.  Aside from the active 

selling of shares, the Company will use social media to encourage the public to invest in the 

hospital without prejudice to compliance with the provisions of the Securities and Regulation 

Commission regarding the marketing of the said shares.  Payment of unpaid subscription 

by the stockholders was also called for to augment the cash position of the corporation. 

At present the Company has four hundred twenty eight (428) employees and the Company 

has plans to hire additional employees within the next 12 months. 

    

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) OR PLAN OF OPERATION 
 

 

Results of Operations (June 30, 2023 vs. December 31, 2022) 
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Other Income 

Other income during June 30, 2023, is lower than December 31, 2022 at 51%. The decrease is due 

to the full swing of constructions, which require use of cash. 

General and Administrative Expenses 

General and administrative expenses for June 30, 2023, amounting to 38 Million.  It is higher by 

1.90% compared to December 31, 2022. 

Finance Cost 

No finance cost was incurred for the period June 30, 2023.  

Loss for the year 

Loss as of June 30, 2023 is 38 Million.  The company is still in non-operational status and there is 

still no income to sustain the expenses. 

 

Financial Condition (June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022) 
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Total Assets 

Total assets increased from P1.003 billion to P1.512 billion, a 50% increase from December 31, 

2022 to June 30, 2023. The increase was primarily due to an increase in Property and Equipment 

because of the bank loans and on-going construction of the hospital, respectively. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by P2.703 million (5%), as a result of an increase in Property 

and Equipments and payments for on-going construction of the hospital. 
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Property and equipment 

Property and equipment amounted to P1.179 billion as of June 30, 2023, which consists mainly of 

the land, construction in progress of the hospital building and hospital equipment, respectively. 

Total Liabilities 

Total liabilities increased by P520.6 million from December 31, 2022 to June 30, 2023. The increase 

was primarily due to bank loans from the Development Bank of the Philippines. 

Current Liabilities 

The increase in current liabilities by P139.2 million was mainly due to an increase in Furnitures and 

Machineries Equipment for hospital operational use. 

Equity 

The 5% increase in total equity is due to the sale of stocks. The Company is still non-operational 

and most of the expenses incurred are in line with planning and construction. 

Results of Operations (December 31, 2022 vs. December 31, 2021)  

 

Other Income 

Other income during the period December 31, 2022 is higher than December 31, 2021 at 207%. 

What is currently being recorded as income is mostly interest income earned from bank deposits.  

During the year, we reflected a total of P74,764 other income, which is 207% higher than what was 

reported last year amounting to P24,357.  This was mainly due to the funds that we parked in our 

bank accounts during the year. 

  

General and Administrative Expenses 

General and Administrative Expenses decreased by 29% during the year.  This is comparing the 

ending balances of 2022 and 2021.   
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Loss for the Period 

Loss for the period December 31, 2022 is lower than in the same period December 31, 2021 by 

29%. This due to the non-operational status of the Company. There is still no income to sustain the 

expenses. 

 

Financial Condition (December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021) 
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Total Assets 

Total assets increased from P621.9 million to P1.008 billion 62% increase from December 31, 2021 

to December 31, 2022. The increase was primarily due to Advances to contractors and the ongoing 

construction of the hospital. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by P25.9 million (30%), as a result of an increase in payments 

for on-going construction of the hospital.. 

Receivables and Advances 

The receivables amounting to P151.5 million as of December 31, 2022 consist mainly of advances 

to contractors and suppliers.                                                                                        

Property and equipment 

Property and equipment amounted to P796.4 million as of December 31, 2022, which consists 

mainly of the land and construction in progress of the hospital, respectively. 

Total Liabilities 

Total liabilities increased by P386.4 million from December 31, 2021 to December 31, 2022. The 

increase was primarily due to bank loans from the Development Bank of the Philippines. 

Current Liabilities 

The decrease in current liabilities by P66.5 million was mainly due to the payment of advances from 

stockholders and loans payable. 

Equity 

The 22% increase in total equity is due to collections of subscription receivables during the period 

and the sale of stocks. The Company is still non-operational and most of the expenses incurred are 

in line with planning, construction and an increase in Property and equipment. 
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Results of Operations (December 31, 2021 vs. December 31, 2020) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Other Income 

Other income during the period December 31, 2021 is lower than December 31, 2020 at 81%. What 

is currently being recorded as income is mostly interest income earned from bank deposits.  During 

the year, we reflected a total of P24,357 in other income which is 81% lower than what was reported 

last year amounting to P130,873.  This was mainly due to the funds that we parked in our bank 

accounts during the year. 

General and Administrative Expenses 

General and Administrative Expenses increased by 132% during the year.  This is comparing the 

ending balances of 2021 and 2020.  During the year, there was a significant increase in taxes paid 

in relation to our bank loan, thus increasing the amount reflected significantly at P9.18M equivalent 

to 970%.  Salaries and professional fees also increased during the period. 

Loss for the Period 

Loss for the period December 31, 2021 is higher than the same period December 31, 2020 by 134%.  

This is due to the non-operational status of the Company. There is still no income to sustain the 

expenses. 
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Financial Condition (December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total Assets 

Total assets increased from P291.8 million to P621.9million 113% increase from December 31, 2020 

to December 31, 2021. The increase was primarily due to an increase in Cash and Property and 

Equipment because of the bank loans and on-going construction of the hospital, respectively. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents increased by P58.9 million (100%), as a result of bank loans granted by 

the Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP) and advances to contractors. 
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Receivables 

The receivables amounting to P32.2 million as of December 31, 2021, consist mainly of advances 

to contractors. 

Property and equipment 

Property and equipment amounted to P504 million as of December 31, 2021, which consists mainly 

of the land and construction in progress of the hospital building. 

Total Liabilities 

Total liabilities increased by P212.5 million from December 31, 2021 to December 31, 2020. The 

increase was primarily due to bank loans from the Development Bank of the Philippines. 

Current Liabilities 

The increase in current liabilities by P15.5 million was mainly due to the payment of advances from 

stockholders and loans payable. 

Equity 

The 72% increase in total equity is due from collections of subscription receivables during the period 

and the sale of stocks. The Company is still non-operational and most of the expenses incurred are 

in line with planning and construction. 
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Results of Operations (December 31, 2020 vs. December 31, 2019) 

 

Other income 

 
Other income during December 31, 2020 is lower than December 31, 2019 at 87%. The decrease is 

due to the termination of time deposit in January 2020. 

General and Administrative Expenses 

  

General and administrative expenses during December 31, 2020 are higher than December 31, 2019 

by 18%. This is due to honorarium expenses and an increase in salaries and wages. 

Finance Cost 

  

No finance cost was incurred for the period ending December 31, 2020. All loans payable were 

settled on August 2, 2019. 

Loss for the year 

Loss as of December 31, 2020 is higher than in the same period December 31, 2019 by 32%. This 

is due to the non-operational status of the Company. There is still no income to sustain the 

expenses. 
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Financial Condition (December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019) 

 

Total Assets 

 

Total assets increased from P291.9 million to P154.2 million, a 48% increase from December 31, 2019 

to December 31, 2020. The increase was primarily due to an increase in Property and Equipment 

because of the on-going construction of the hospital. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents increased by P12.5 million (31%), as a result of the additional collection of 

subscription receivable from capital stock. 
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Receivables 

 
The receivables amounting to P6.0 million as of December 31, 2020 consist mainly of advances to 

contractors. 

  

Property and equipment 

  

Property and equipment amounted to P232.9 million as of December 31, 2020, which consists mainly 

of the land and construction in progress of the hospital building. 

Total Liabilities 

  

Total liabilities increased by P128.0 million from December 31, 2019 to December 31, 2020. The 

increase was primarily due to retention payable and advances from stockholders to finance the 

construction of the hospital building. 

Current Liabilities 

The increase in current liabilities by P128.0 million was mainly due to retention payable and advances 

from stockholders to finance the construction of the hospital building. 

Equity 

  

The 6% increase in total equity is due to the collection of subscription receivables during the period. 

The Company is still non-operational and most of the expenses incurred are in line with planning and 

construction. 
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Results of Operations (December 31, 2019 vs. December 31, 2018) 

 

Other income 

 

Other income during December 31, 2019 was higher than December 31, 2018 at 761%. The increase 

is due to the increase in outstanding cash balances every end of the month. 

General and Administrative Expenses 

  

General and administrative expenses during December 31, 2019 are lower than December 31, 2018 

by 3%. This is due to a decrease in training and seminars. 

Finance Cost 

  

No finance cost was incurred for the period December 31, 2019 and 2018. 

Loss for the year 

Loss as of December 31, 2019 is lower than in the same period December 31, 2018 by 13%. This 

is due to the non-operational status of the Company. There is still no income to sustain the 

expenses. 



     

Page 21 of 28 
 

Financial Condition (December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018) 

Total Assets 

 
Total assets increased from P142.6 million to P154.2 million, an 8% increase from December 31, 2018 

to December 31, 2019. The increase was primarily due to an increase in Property and Equipment 

because of the on-going construction of the hospital. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by P6.6 million(14%), as a result of the on-going construction 

of the hospital building. 

Property and equipment 

 

Property and equipment amounted to P113.8 million as of December 31, 2019, which consists mainly 

of the land and construction in progress of the hospital building. 

Total Liabilities 

 
Total liabilities decreased by P122.9 million from December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2019. The 
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decrease was primarily due to advances. 

Current Liabilities 

The decrease in current liabilities by P16.4 million was mainly due to the payment of the unpaid balance 

for the land acquired by the Company, which was paid in 2019. 

Equity 

 
The 683% increase in total equity is due to the collections of subscription receivables during the period. 

The Company is still non-operational and mostly of the expenses incurred is in line with planning and 

construction. 

 

Key Performance Indicators 

 Current/Liquidity Ratios 

To meet the Company's short-term obligations and funding for the construction of its 

building, the Company will call for payment of the subscription receivable from the 

stockholders.  Also, the Company secured from Development Bank of the Philippines a 

credit line facility on November 29, 2021 as one of its sources in funding the construction 

of the hospital building.  The Company’s current ratios were 1.51 and 2.68 as at June 

30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively. Meanwhile, the Company’s quick ratios 

were 1.51 and 2.67 as at June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively. 

          The Company's liquid assets consist of cash and receivables. 

Solvency/Debt-to-equity ratios 

The Company showed debt-to-equity ratios of 361.62% and 192.81% as at June 30, 

2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively. The higher ratio in 2023 reflects that the 

Company opted to debt financing for its capital expenditures. 

Net debt-to-equity ratio 

The Company showed net debt-to-equity ratios of 344.22% and 175.47% as at June 

30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively. The higher ratio in 2022 reflects that 

the Company opted to debt financing for its capital expenditures. 

Gross profit ratios 

         The Company has not yet started its commercial operation, thus, no revenue earned. 

Net income from operations to profit margin ratios 

         The Company has no profit and net income from operations. 
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Asset to equity ratio 

The Company has 461.75% asset to equity ratio as at June 30, 2023 compared to 292.81% 

as at December 31, 2022. 

Profitability ratios 

         Return on assets ratio 

                     The Company has no net income from operations. 

         Return on equity ratio 

                     The Company has no net income from operations. 

 

The manner by which the Company calculates the key performance indicators is as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



     

Page 24 of 28 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Discussion and Analysis of Material Events and Uncertainties 

1. There are no known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have 

a material impact on the Company's liquidity. The Company has not yet started its operation. 

The Company’s pre-operating and investing activities were financed through loans and 

capital infusion from shareholders. Management believes that the completion and fully 

operational of its hospital building will provide the Company a steady source of income and 

cash flow in the foreseeable future. 

2. There are no events that will trigger a direct or contingent financial obligation that is material 

to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation. 

3. There were no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including 

contingent obligations), or other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities 

or other persons created during the reporting period. 

4. There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had, or are reasonably 

expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on income from continuing pre-

operations. 

5. There were material commitments for capital expenditures during the quarter, as disclosed 

in Note 7 of the financial statements.  On November 15, 2021, the Company entered into a 

Mortgage Agreement with the Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP) for loan and credit 

accommodations to finance the construction of the hospital building and the acquisition of 

medical instruments, furniture and appliances. The Mortgage Agreement is secured by the 

land together with the building and other permanent improvements. 
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Current financial position depends on the infusion of capital from the remaining shares from 

the IPO and the loan facility granted by the Development Bank of the Philippines.  With the 

increasing demands, especially now that a completion target has been set, the corporation 

must maximize all means to market and sell offered shares to the public.  Aside from the 

active selling of shares, the Company will use social media to encourage the public to invest 

in the hospital without prejudice to compliance with the provisions of the Securities and 

Regulation Commission regarding the marketing of the said shares.  Payment of unpaid 

subscription by the stockholders was also called for to augment the cash position of the 

corporation. 

6. There were no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company's 

continuing pre-operations. 

7. There were no seasonal aspects that had any material effect on the financial condition or 

results of operations of the Company. 

 

SEASONAL ASPECTS THAT HAS MATERIAL EFFECT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Impact of Coronavirus of 2019 (COVID-19) Update 
 

Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic 
 
The Company has been exposed to the risks brought about by COVID-19, a novel strain of 

coronavirus, which has rapidly spread worldwide and reached a pandemic magnitude as it continues 

to affect more and more countries and territories. 

 
On March 16, 2020, the President of the Philippines issued Proclamation No. 929 declaring 

a state of calamity throughout the Philippines due to COVID-19 which resulted to the imposition of 

an Enhanced Community Quarantine throughout Luzon starting midnight of March 16, 2020 until      

 

May 15, 2020 and this was extended to other Provinces including the Province of Aklan. The 

whole Metro Manila was also placed under a General Community Quarantine (GCQ) until June 15, 

2021, after that, there were series of COVID-19 waves or surges of new cases because of several 

emerging variants and sub variants of concern circulating.  For instance, there was a large spike of 

cases between June-Sept 2021 as the contagious delta variant began to circulate and become 

dominant, and another spike in cases last January 2022 because of the omicron variant. Due to 

this, we are also hit by lockdown orders, operational restrictions, shortages of labor, supply chain 

disruptions and financing strains.  

 

A combination of national, regional and local measures contribute to an effective response 

to COVID 19 public health and economic crisis.  As COVID-19 pandemic enters its 4th year, we 

achieved resilient recovery and strong future growth with effective cooperation and communication 

with its client and stakeholders. 

 

This year, it will be a demanding and significant year for us, as we are nearing the completion 

of APMC Aklan and gearing towards opening in June so that we can provide world class facilities 

and services to the people of Aklan and its nearby provinces. 

 
 
 



     

Page 26 of 28 
 

External Audit Fees 
 

 Audit and Audit Related Fees 
 
 The 2022 Audited Financial Statements of the Company with the External Auditors’ PTR, 

Name of the Certifying partner and Address and Statement of Manager’s Responsibility 
are attached hereto as Annex E2. 

 
 
THE AGGREGATE FEES BILLED ARE SHOWN BELOW: 
 
Fees approved in connection with the assurance rendered by Mendoza Querido Co. pursuant to the 
regulatory and statutory requirements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 and years ended 
December 31, 2022 amount to Php 168,000.00 and Php 224,224.64 inclusive of 12% VAT, 
respectively. December 31, 2021 amounts to Php 595,098.20 and December 31, 2020 to Php 
225,166.88. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

D. COMPLIANCE WITH LEADING PRACTICES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Company is committed to a strong corporate governance with transparency and 

accountability as its hallmarks. 

On 4 July 2021, during its first meeting after the issuance of the Permit to Offer Securities, 

the Board of Directors appointed its Compliance Officer as an initial step in ensuring that it 

will adhere to the highest standards of good governance. The Company submitted its 

Manual on Corporate Governance on 2 December 2021 which substantially adopted all of 

the recommendations under SEC Memorandum Circular No. 24, Series of 2019, otherwise 

known as the Code of Corporate Governance for Public Companies and Registered Issuers 

(CG Code for PCs and Rls). 

The minor deviations from the recommendations of the CG Code for PCs and Rls such as 

the number of  Executive directors being more than the number of non-executive directors, 

the Corporate Secretary being a member of the Board of Directors,  and having three (3) 

Independent Directors instead of five (5) or one-third of the membership were necessitated 

by the fact that the company is just about to operate and there is a need to tighten the purse 

that is achieved by having a lean manpower through the combination of various roles in one 

person. As soon as it commences operation, the Company will ensure that it is fully 

compliant with all the recommendations. 

Education and training is essential to compliance. To ensure that the Company will fully 

comply with the adopted leading practices on good corporate governance, a program was 

set in place requiring Directors to undergo SEC accredited trainings on corporate 
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governance trainings and other trainings that will optimize Board performance. Further, to 

improve corporate governance of the company, a regular review of the Manual on 

Governance by the Corporate Governance Committee is mandated.  

  

 

 

The following table shows the training received by the APMC Aklan Board of Directors in 2023: 
 
 
 

DIRECTOR 2023 

Dr. Marsha Lourdes P. Conanan-Morato Information Security Management 
System conducted by STEP Training on 
20 May 2023, 
(3 hours). 

Dr. Maribel J. Arce Competency based HR Programs 
conducted by Center for Global Best 
Practices on 23 May 
2023, (3 hours). 

Dr. Claire B. Perez Enabling Sustainability Culture 
Distinguished Corporate Governance 
Speaker Series (DCGSS) conducted by 
Institute of Corporate Directors 
on 27 June 2023, (2 hours). 

Dr. Mary Karen Veronica R. Icamina Enabling Sustainability Culture 
Distinguished Corporate Governance 
Speaker Series (DCGSS) conducted by 
Institute of Corporate Directors 
on 27 June 2023, (2 hours). 

Dr. Joanne B. Abril Finance for Directors conducted by  
Institute of Corporate Directors on 18-19 
July 
2023, (8 hours). 

Dr. Gregory Joseph Ryan A. Ardeña Finance for Directors conducted by  
Institute of Corporate Directors on 18-19 
July 
2023, (8 hours). 

 
 
Dr. Delphine Joanne Quintana-
Bartolome 

Finance for Directors conducted by  
Institute of Corporate Directors on 18-19 
July 
2023, (8 hours). 

Raging 2023 Technology Challenges 
conducted by Institute of Corporate 
Directors 
on 26-27 July 2023, (4 hours). 
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Dr. Regina R. Buenaflor Raging 2023 Technology Challenges 
conducted by Institute of Corporate 
Directors 
on 26-27 July 2023, (4 hours). 

 

All other directors are expected to attend training in other aspects of governance by the end of 2023.  

 





Over-All construction 

accomplishment is at 88.57%

 Architectural Works is now contributing an accomplishment 

gain of 61.35%. Punch listings are now conducting on areas 

from Ground to 4th Floor and areas at 7th Floor.

 24-Inch, the Plumbing Works Contractor as of to date have 

84.26% completion on their work scope. Water source 

connection from local water has already entered the 

building. Fire Protection Works are currently at 79.68% 

complete. Pumps are already installed subject for final 

testing. Challenge is in their procurement of materials and 

inadequate labor.



The Electrical Contractor is facing challenges such as shortage 

of manpower and materials. On-site they garnered a Progress 

completion of 90.00% but is under review since lighting fixtures 

and devices are only 40% installed.

The Electronics & Auxiliary Contractor. Installations of cable 

trays, CCTV, Voice & Data Piping, Nurse Call & BGM is on going 

bringing combined progress of 94.15%. While for contract 2 

which is installation of devices is still at 17.82%. Mr. Cacayurin

promised to visit the site as well as to deliver all devices by 

Tuesday.

The Mechanical contractor with completion of 93.20% as of 

report. We are now testing and doing power-ups of ACUs from 

Basement to 4th Floor and 7th floor auditorium. 



Site Development Auxiliary Structures has an accumulative 

percentage of 97.89%, it comprises of several support structures 

including Powerhouse, Warehouse, TB Dots, Animal Bite Center, 

Motor pool & MRF, including the additional Building for CT SCAN. 

STP Structure is also complete and now on its testing phase and 

expected to be utilized before the end of the month.

Medical Gas has completed 70.15%. We are awaiting completion of 

gas outlets and headboards in our patient rooms.

Glass Works is 88.78% as of to date. They are currently prioritizing 

building exterior for water tightness. Challenge is in the delivery 

of their materials

Elevator and Escalator is 19.86% complete. Escalators from Ground 

to 3rd are now on its commissioning phase and can be fully utilized 

by end of month. Delay is due to lack of manpower to which they 

promised to augment this week.



SCOPE OF WORK CONTRACTOR

Previous

Month 

Progress 

This Period Progress Gained

Plumbing Works 24” Gauge 

Construction. Inc

82.92% 84.26% 1.34%

Electrical Works RMT electrical 

works

65.03% 90.00% 15.12

Mechanical 

Works

JRDM Builders 

Corp

90.58% 93.20% 2.23%

Fire Protection 

Works

24”Gauge 

Construction. Inc

78.13% 79.68% 1.55%

Electronics 

Package 2

Synchronized 

Solutions Inc

15.47% 17.82% 2.35%

Site 

Development

Trass Construction 95.92% 97.89% 0.01%

BMS Enyecontrols 83.55% 87.24% 3.69%

Architectural Trass Construction 55.85% 61.35% 3.26%

Total accomplishment percentage 87.49% 88.57% 1.08%



Lobby



ER complex



Ground floor 

hallway



Blood station



Cashier & 

Billing section



Eye Center





MICU



Major OR





3rd Floor Lounge area



Clinic Hallway



4th Floor 

Outdoor Lounge



4th Floor 

Waiting Lounge



Private Room



SiteDev or Auxiliary Area



Sitedev: Special services
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ASIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER-AKLAN INC. 
 

LIST OF STOCKHOLDERS AND THEIR VOTING RIGHTS 
     AS OF JUNE 2023 

       

 

NO. OF 
STOCKHOLDER 

NAME OF 
FOUNDER/STOCKHOLDERS 

VOTING 
RIGHTS 
by No. of 
Shares 

Percentage 
Ownership 

1 ABAYON, ROMEO A.  
3,400 

 
1.58% 

2 ABRIL, JOANNE B. 
 

3,400 
 

1.58% 

3 ALFARO, MA. ESTER L.  

6,800 
 

3.16% 
 

4 ARCE, MARIBEL J. 
 

6,800 
 

3.16% 

5 ARCE, SIMEON A. JR.  

6,800 
 

3.16% 

6 ARDEÑA, GREGORY JOSEPH 

RYAN A. 

 

3,400 
 

1.58% 

7 BALBASTRO, RAMEL RAMON M.  
3,400 

 
1.58% 

8 BARRAMEDA, ROMULO S.  
3,400 

 
1.58% 

9 BIRON, FERJENEL G.  
34,000 

 
15.81% 

10 QUINTANA- BARTOLOME, 

DELPHINE JOANNE C. 

 
3,400 

 
1.58% 

11 BUENAFLOR. PATRICK DEXTER M.  
10,200 

 
4.74% 

12 BUENAFLOR, REGINA R.  

6,800 
 

3.16% 



 

 

 

13 COMUELO, JERUSHA A.  

3,400 
 

1.58% 

14 CONANAN- MORATO, 

MARSHA LOURDES P. 

 

3,400 
 

1.58% 

15 DAULO-LAVILLA, MERIDE  

6,800 
 

3.16% 

16 DE JOSE, JOHNNA G.  

3,400 
 

1.58% 

17 DEBUQUE, EILEEN MAY B.  

3,400 
 

1.58% 

18 DIGNADICE, MARYMIL B.  

6,800 
 

3.16% 

18 ESCANILLAS, ROEL A.  

3,400 
 

1.58% 

20 FERNANDEZ, EDMUNDO JR. B.  

3,400 
 

1.58% 

21 FERNANDEZ, LEMUEL T.  

3,400 
 

1.58% 

22 FRANCISCO, NIKKI JAMES C.  

3,400 
 

1.58% 

23 ICAMINA, MARY KAREN VERONICA 

R. 

 

3,400 
 

1.58% 

24 IGNACIO, MAY U. 
 

3,400 

 
1.58% 

25 ISIDRO, JESSORE I.  
6,800 

 
3.16% 

26 LAVALLE, AMADO JR. M.  
3,400 

 
1.58% 

27 MAGALLANES, JOSEFA 

ROBERTA A. 

 
3,400 

 
1.58% 

28 MINERVA, IKE T. 
 

3,400 
 

1.58% 



 

 

 

29 NAVARRO, HARRIET R.  

3,400 
 

1.58% 

30 PALMA, ESTER F. 
 

3,400 
 

1.58% 

31 PEREZ, CLAIRE B. 
 

10,200 
 

4.74% 

32 QUIMPO, RAYMUNDO R.  

3,400 
 

1.58% 

33 QUINDOR, DARCY A.  

3,400 
 

1.58% 

34 RAMIREZ, RUBEN B.  

3,400 
 

1.58% 

35 REGOZO, DANILO C.  

3,400 
 

1.58% 

36 SAMORO, FREDILYN G.  

3,400 
 

1.58% 

37 SAZON, PAULEEN M.  

3,400 
 

1.58% 

38 TORRES, PETER MYRON JUN O.  

6,800 
 

3.16% 

39 VILLAFLOR, AGNES JEAN M.  

3,400 
 

1.58% 

40 QUIMPO, GABRILLE C. 400  
0.19% 

 ALL OTHER INVESTORS WITH 

LESS THAN 50 SHARES 

 
10,660 

 

 
5% 

 TOTAL 215,060 100% 
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                                                                                  “ANNEX K ” 

2022 BOARD APPRAISAL/ PERFORMANCE REPORT 

 

 In accordance with the mandate of the Board of Directors and in line with corporate governance 

best practices, Asia Pacific Medical Center-Aklan Inc. (formerly known as Allied Care Experts Medical 

Center- Aklan Inc.) formulated a Board Performance Assessment. This evaluation entails each Board 

of Director to periodically identify the strengths of the Board and its other working committee and 

recognize specific areas that need improvement based on the results of the assessment. The 

evaluation report will also impart important feedback and views from the members of the Board 

and in turn will serve as one of the basis for the Company’s overall strategy, performance for future 

directions and endeavors. 

 The Board of Directors for the year 2022-2023 were asked to evaluate the performance of the Board 

for each category namely, structure, efficiency and effectiveness, participation and engagement of 

each member of the Board, contribution of each member director to their respective Committee, 

and performance of the Management. The assessment also reflects specific responsibilities and 

accountabilities of each party evaluated as provided in the Company By-Laws, Manuals, Charters 

and governing policies. 

 The Board of Directors used a rating scale of 1 to 5, and the values are as follows: 1- Needs 

Improvement, 2- Satisfactory, 3- Very Satisfactory, 4- Good, 5- Excellent. Below is the result of the 

Self- Assessment conducted by the 2022 Board of Directors based on the aforementioned criteria. 

 

ANNEX A (Board Self-Assessment) RATINGS 

STRUCTURE  

1. The Board has a proper mix of directors with the appropriate skills, knowledge 

and experience to enable them to effectively participate in Board deliberations. 

 (86.7%) 

 

2. The Board has a process of selection that ensures an appropriate mix of 

directors and officers who can perform competently and professionally and add 

value to the Company. 

 (86.7%) 

 

3. The powers, roles, responsibilities and accountabilities between the Board and 

management are clearly defined, segregated and understood. 

  (80%) 

 

4. The Board has the necessary committees in place to assist the Board in the 

performance of its duties and responsibilities. 

(93.3%) 

 

5.The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separate or, if not there are adequate 

checks and balances to help ensure that independent , outside views, perspective, 

and judgments are given proper hearing in the Board. 

 (93.3%) 

 

LEADERSHIP, ROLES, RESPONSIBILITIES 

6. The Board, together with the Management determines and periodically reviews 

the Company’s purpose, vision, mission and strategic objectives and business 

 (80%) 
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plans and policies that guide and direct activities of the Company, and the means 

to attain the same. 

7. The Board oversees management’s implementation of sound strategic policies 

and guidelines on major capital expenditures, business strategies, operational 

budgets, plans and policies. 

 (86.7%) 

 

8. The Board regularly and periodically monitors the Company’s corporate 

performance against such strategic objectives and business plans. 

 (80%) 

 

9. The Board provides oversight with regard to enterprise risk management and 

Identifies key risk areas and key performance indicators and monitor these factors 

with due diligence. 

 (86.7%) 

 

10. The Board adopts and decides on Company’s governance principles, 

model/framework, guideline and practices and oversees the implementation 

thereof. 

 (86.7%) 

 

11. The Board ensures that the Company complies with all relevant laws and 

regulations and endeavors to adopt accepted best business practices. 

 

 (93.3%) 

 

12. The Board approves objectives and policies for the Company's social, 

community and environmental performance. 

 (71.4%) 

  

13. The Board exercises corporate powers in accordance with the principles of 

sound corporate governance, and secures the Company’s long-term viability and 

success. 

 (93.3%) 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL 

14. The Board has a good understanding of Management’s responsibilities in 

relation to internal control. 

 (86.7%) 

 

15. The Board ensures the continuing soundness, effectiveness and adequacy of 

the Company’s internal control environment. 

 (93.3%) 

 

16. The Board ensures that the Company has an internal audit system that can 

reasonably assure that the Company’s key organizational and operational controls 

are complied with. 

 (93.3%) 

 

17. The Board ensures that the Company has an independent audit mechanism 

for the proper audit and review of financial statements by independent auditors. 

 (86.7%) 

 

18. The Board adopts a system of check and balance within the Board and 

regularly reviews its system of checks and balances for effectiveness. 

 (86.7%) 

 

CODE OF CONDUCT AND OTHER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICIES 

19. The Board understands and actively promotes the Company’s principles and 

values. 

 (86.7%) 

 

20. There is a written Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (the “Code of Conduct”) 

to be followed by the Board, CEO, officers and employees. 

 (86.7%) 
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22. The Code of Conduct is communicated, understood and followed by the Board, 

CEO, officers and employees. 

 (80%) 

 

23. The Code of Conduct provides that there shall be no waiver of any provision 

of the Code of Conduct in favor of directors or officers, except when expressly 

granted by the Board and any such waiver must be promptly disclosed to the 

stockholders. 

 

       (80%) 

 

24. There is a formal channel established to allow employees to report unethical 

conduct. 

 (86.7%) 

 

25. The Board ensures it has and is communicating and implementing a formal 

conflict of interest policy and it contains guidelines and provisions prohibiting the 

Company whether directly or indirectly from granting loans to directors and 

officers. 

(86.7%) 

 

 

26. There are appropriate policies and procedures governing related party 

transactions. 

 (93.3%) 

 

27. The Board ensures that the directors are, as required or necessary or upon 

request of such directors, trained on corporate governance leading practices and 

principles by competent and recognized experts in the field, which may include 

institutional training providers accredited or recognized by the Philippine SEC. 

 (93.3%) 

 

INDEPENDENCE 

28. The Board thinks and acts independently of, and is not unduly influenced by, 

the CEO and Management. 

 (80%) 

 

29. The Board has a balance of executive and non-executive directors, including 

independent directors such that no individual or small group of individuals can 

dominate the Board’s decision making. 

 (86.7%) 

 

 

STEWARDSHIP 

30. The Board ensures that the company has a delegation of authorities 

document(s) and system(s) governing approval and reporting limits and levels, 

including its own delegated authority levels to the Board Committees and the 

CEO. 

 (86.7%) 

 

 

31. The Board maintains close oversight and operations and financial aspects of 

the Company. 

 (93.3%) 

  

32. The Board approves strategic financial and non-financial objectives and 

policies and monitors the achievement thereof against approved 

targets/performance to ensure the efficiency and effectiveness of the Company. 

 (93.3%) 

 

33. The Board ensures the recruitment and retention of high potential and high 

performance key employees (through the CEO and Management) 

 (93.3%) 

 

34. The Board ensures that there is a professional development programs for 

employees and officers and provides for a succession plan for senior management 

that the Board reviews. 

 (86.7%) 
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RESOURCES 

35. The Board members have access to Management and independent 

professional advice to enable them to discharge their duties. 

 (86.7%) 

 

36. The Corporate Secretary has the primary role of supporting the Board and 

chairperson. 

 (80%) 

 

 

MONITORING 

a.) Meetings 

37. The Board schedules and holds regular meetings and convenes special 

meetings when required by business exigencies. 

 (93.3%) 

  

 

38. At least one independent director is always in attendance in all Board 

meetings. 

 (93.3%) 

 

 

39. The Board holds sessions with the non-management/non-executive and 

independent directors (excluding management/executive directors) at least once 

a year and as such other times as the Board may deem necessary or appropriate. 

 (93.3%) 

 

 

40. There is active solicitation of views and opinions of the members of the Board 

in the process of arriving at a decision. 

 (86.7%) 

 

41. The Board uses an annual calendar to plan meetings, address issues and align 

with planning and reporting cycles. 

 (80%) 

 

42. The Board meetings are duly minuted.  (93.3%) 

 

 

43. The minutes of Board meetings are clear and useful.  (93.3%) 

 

44. The Board receives in a timely manner the right information it needs to fulfill 

its responsibilities. 

 (80%) 

 

MONITORING 

b.) Performance Assessments 

45. The Board ensures that there are mechanisms to monitor its performance and 

that of its Committees and individual members. 

 (86.7%) 

 

 

46. The Board really knows how well it and its Committees are fulfilling their 

responsibilities and achieving their objectives. 

 (86.7%) 

 

 

47. The Board operates smoothly and effectively as a team.  (86.7%) 
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48. The Board has its own succession and development plans which reflect the 

results of performance evaluations. 

 (86.7%) 

 

49. The Board has an effective ongoing development programs for directors and 

Board Committee members. 

 (80%) 

 

50. Overall, the Board and the Board Committee are contributing to the success 

of the Company. 

 (93.3%) 

 

 

51. Overall, the Board and Board Committees are contributing to the success of 

the Company. 

 (93.3%) 

 

 

REPORTING AND DISCLOSURES 

52. The Company has a clear policy on communicating or relating with its various 

shareholders. 

 (86.7%) 

 

 

53. The Board regularly and timely reviews, approves and communicates the 

financial reports, key corporate activities and other material disclosures and 

statements of the Company to its stakeholders. 

 (86.7%) 

 

 

54. The Board asks probing and informed questions of management about the 

Company’s results of operations and disclosures. 

 

(86.7%) 

 

 

55. The Board promotes and ensures a culture of openness and transparency in 

the Company. 

 

 (86.7%) 

 

 

SHAREHOLDERS’ BENEFITS 

56. The Board Ensures that the Company has an existing mechanism which 

promotes stockholders’ rights. 

 (86.7%) 

 

 

57. The Company has in place an investor relations program that will keep 

stockholders and investors informed of important developments in the Company. 

 (93.3%) 

 

58. The Board ensures that the Company implements steps to facilitate 

stockholders’ participation in annual or special meetings of stockholders. 

 (86.7%) 

 

 

59. The Board ensures that the Company timely provides stockholders with 

relevant and timely information prior to such meetings. 

 

 (80%) 

 

60. The Board ensures transparency and fairness in the conduct of stockholders 

meetings. 

 (86.7%) 
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61. The Chairman of the meeting of stockholders gives stockholders an 

opportunity to raise their concerns or questions relating to the items in the 

agenda of the meeting. 

 (86.7%) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANNEX B (Directors Self Assessment) RATINGS 

1. I understand the mission, vision and values of the Company.  (100%) 

 

2. I act in a manner characterized by transparency, accountability, integrity 

and fairness fully aware that the office of a director is one of trust and 

confidence. 

 (94%) 

3. I devote sufficient time and attention necessary to properly discharge 

and effectively perform my duties and responsibilities as a member of the 

Board. 

 (80%) 

 

4. I keep myself updated on developments in the Company, including its 

financial and operational performance. 

 (93.3%) 

 

 

5. I ensure that my personal interest does not conflict with the interest of 

the Company. 

 (93.3%) 

 

 

6. I exercise independent judgment. 

 

 (80%) 

 

7. I have a working knowledge of the statutory and regulatory 

requirements affecting the Company, including the contents of its Articles 

of Incorporation and By-Laws, the requirements of the SEC, and where 

applicable, the requirements of other regulatory agencies. 

 (80%) 

 

 

8. I observe confidentiality of non-public information acquired by reason of 

my position as a director. 

 (93.3%) 

 

 

9. I attend all board meetings except when prevented by justifiable cause. 

 

 (100%) 

 

10. I actively participate in board discussions and deliberations. 

 

 (93.3%) 

 

11. I take steps, such as attendance in seminars, reading journals and other 

materials, to enhance and update my knowledge on corporate governance 

and enable me to discharge my duties and responsibilities as a director. 

 (93.3%) 
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12. I am aware of key issues and challenges facing the Company today and 

in the future. 

 (93.3%) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANNEX C.1 (Audit Committee Self-Assessment) RATINGS 

SETTING OF COMMITTEE STRUCTURE AND OPERATION 

1. Committee size. Is this part of the Audit Committee? (100%) 

 

2 .Independence requirement. Is this part of the Audit Committee?  (75%) 

 

3. Qualifications, skills and attributes of members and Chair. Is this part of the 

Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

4. Financial knowledge of members. Is this part of the Audit Committee?  (100%) 

 

5. Succession plan for members and Chair. Is this part of the Audit Committee  (100%) 

 

6. Meetings (frequency, etc.). Is this part of the Audit Committee?  (100%) 

 

7. Reporting to the Board and issuance of certifications on critical compliance 

issues. Is this part of the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

8. Evaluations. Is this part of the Audit Committee 

 

 (100%) 

 

9. Resources including access to outside advisors. Is this part of the Audit 

Committee 

 (100%) 

 

10. Training and education. Is this part of the Audit Committee?  (100%) 

 

II. OVERSIGHT ON FINANCIAL REPORTING AND DISCLOSURES 

1. Extent of understanding of the Company's business and industry in which it 

operates. Is this part of the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

2. Compliance with financial reporting regulations. Is this part of the Audit 

Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

3. Recognition of management's responsibility over the financial statements. Is 

this part of the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 
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4. Appropriateness of accounting policies adopted by management. Is this part 

of the Audit Committee? 

 (75%) 

 (25%) 

5. Reasonableness of estimates, assumptions, and judgments used in the 

preparation of financial statements. Is this part of the Audit Committee 

 (100%) 

 

6. Identification of material errors and fraud and sufficiency of risk controls. Is 

this part of the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

7. Actions or measures in case of finding of error or fraud in financial reporting. 

Is this part of the Audit Committee 

 (100%) 

 

8. Review of unusual or complex transactions including all related party 

transactions. Is this part of the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

9. Determination of impact of new accounting standards and interpretations. Is 

this part of the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

10. Assessment of financial annual and interim reports as to completeness, 

clarity, consistency and accuracy of disclosures of material information including 

on subsequent events and related party transactions. Is this part of the Audit 

Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

11. Review and approval of management representation letter before 

submission to external auditor. Is this part of the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

12. Communication of the AudCom with legal counsel covering litigation, claims, 

contingencies or other significant legal issues that impact financial statements. 

Is this part of the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

13. Fair and balance review of financial reports. Is this part of the Audit 

Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

14. Assessment of correspondence between the Company and regulators 

regarding financial statement filings and disclosures. Is this part of the Audit 

Committee’s Charter?. 

 (100%) 

 

III. OVERSIGHT ON INTERNAL CONTROLS 

1. Obtaining management's assurance on the state of internal controls. Is this 

part of the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

2. Review of internal auditor's evaluation of internal controls. Is this part of the 

Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

3. Evaluation of internal control issues raised by external auditors. Is this part of 

the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

4. Assessment of control environment including IT systems and functions. Is this 

part of the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

5. Setting a framework for fraud prevention and detection including whistle-

blower program. Is this part of the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

6. Deliberation on findings of weaknesses in controls and reporting process. Is 

this part of the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 
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IV. OVERSIGHT ON MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL AUDIT 

1. Evaluation of compliance with the Code of Conduct for management. Is this 

part of the Audit Committee’s Charter? 

 (100%) 

 

2. Communication with management and internal auditor. Is this part of the 

Audit Committee?  

 (100%) 

 

3. Review and approval of scope of work and fees of external auditor. Is this part 

of the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

4. Assessment of non-audit services. Is this part of the Audit Committee?  (100%) 

 

5. Understanding disagreements between the auditor and management. Is this 

part of the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

6. Actions on the findings of an external auditor. Is this part of the Audit 

Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

7. Management's competence regarding financial reporting responsibilities 

including aggressiveness and reasonableness of decisions. Is this part of the 

Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

8. Evaluation of performance of external audit-reappointment and resignation. 

Is this part of the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

9. Compliance of external auditor with auditing standards. Is this part of the 

Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 

 

10. Completeness and timeliness of communication with external auditor as to 

critical policies, alternative treatments, observations on internal controls, audit 

adjustments, independence, limitations on the audit work set by the 

management, and other material issues that affect the audit and financial 

reporting. Is this part of the Audit Committee? 

 (100%) 
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ANNEX C.2 (Nominations Committee Self-Assessment) RATINGS 

I. SETTING OF COMMITTEE STRUCTURE AND OPERATION 

1) The nomination committee has at least three (3) voting Directors. Is 

this part of the Audit Committee’s Charter? 

 (100%) 

 

2) At least one of the Committee members is an Independent Director.  

Is this part of the Audit Committee’s Charter?* 

 (100%) 

 

3) Meetings (frequency, etc.). Is this part of the Audit Committee’s 

Charter? 

 (100%) 

 

4) Evaluations. Is this part of the Audit Committee’s Charter? 

 

 (100%) 

 

II. COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES 

1.) It recommends to the Board qualified nominees for election as 

Directors and Committee members. Is this part of the Audit Committee’s 

Charter? 

 

 (100%) 

 

2.) It prepares the final list of candidates for the Board of Directors to be 

elected by the stockholders during the annual membership meeting. Is 

this part of the Audit Committee’s Charter? 

 (100%) 

 

3.) There is a schedule of all planned meetings for the year, which maps 

how the committee's responsibilities are addressed over the year. Is this 

part of the Audit Committee’s Charter? 

 (100%) 
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Annex C.3 (Remuneration/ Compensation Committee Self-Assessment) RATINGS 

I. Setting of Committee Structure and Operation 

1) The Compensation committee has at least three (3) voting Directors. Is this 

part of the Audit Committee Charter? 

 (66.7%) 

 

2) At least one of the Committee members is an Independent Director. Is this 

part of the Audit Committee Charter? 

 (66.7%) 

 

3) Meetings (frequency, etc.). Is this part of the Audit Committee Charter? 

 

 (66.7%) 

 

4) Evaluations. Is this part of the Audit Committee Charter? 

 

 (66.7%) 

  

II. Committee Responsibilities  

1.) It oversees the development and administration of Remuneration Programs 

aligned with overall philosophy and strategy. Is this part of the Audit Committee 

Charter? 

 (66.7%) 

  

2.) It evaluates the appropriate compensation for the Board of Directors. Is this 

part of the Audit Committee Charter? 

 (66.7%) 

  

3.) There is a schedule of all planned meetings for the year, which maps how the 

committee's responsibilities are addressed over the year. Is this part of the Audit 

Committee Charter? 

 (66.7%) 
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ANNEX C.4 (Corporate Governance Committee) RATINGS 

I. SETTING OF COMMITTEE STRUCTURE AND OPERATION 

1) The Corporate Governance committee has at least three (3) voting 

Directors. Is this part of the Audit Committee Charter? 

 (80%) 

 

2) Majority of the Committee members are Independent Directors. Is this 

part of the Audit Committee Charter? 

 (100%) 

 

3) Meetings (frequency, etc.). Is this part of the Audit Committee Charter?  (80%) 

 

4) Evaluations. Is this part of the Audit Committee Charter? (100%) 

 

II. COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES 

1.) It reviews and recommends, for Board approval, recommendations to 

improve the company’s compliance to the Revised Corporate Governance 

Code, the company’s Revised Manual of Corporate Governance and other 

corporate governance rules and applicable laws. Is this part of the Audit 

Committee’s Charter? 

 (100%) 

 

2.) It reviews annually the Charters of all Board Committees and 

recommends appropriate changes or improvements to the Board. Is this 

part of the Audit Committee’s Charter? 

 (100%) 

 

3.) It oversees the development of corporate governance principles, 

structure, best practices and rules for adoption by the Company, and 

assists the Board in the implementation thereof. Is this part of the Audit 

Committee’s Charter? 

 (100%) 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

13 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANNEX D (Board of Directors’ Performance Evaluation of the President/CEO) RATINGS 

I. Leadership 

1) Leads in the formulation of the rules and procedures on financial reporting 

and internal control. 

 (92.9%) 

 

2) Supervises, directs, controls and manages the business operations, affairs 

and properties of the Company in a sound and prudent manner. 

 (85.7%) 

 

3) Consistently makes decisions that enable the Company achieve its goals 

better. 

 (78.6%) 

 

4) Commits to the fundamental principles of good corporate governance and 

supports the Board in its governance duties. 

 (78.6%) 

 

II. Working with the Board 

1.) Helps the Board establish the Company vision, mission, strategic objectives, 

policies and procedures, including mechanisms for effective monitoring of 

Management performance. 

 (78.6%) 

 

2.) Maintains an effective working relationship with the Chairman and 

members of the Board of Directors. 

 (78.6%) 

 

3) Provides the Board complete, adequate and timely information on plans, 

performance, issues, developments and opportunities which would enable it 

to make appropriate decisions or directions. 

 (85.7%) 

 

4) Ensures that all resolutions and directions of the Board are carried into 

effect. 

 (85.7%) 

 

III. Management 
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1.) Participates in the formulation and implementation of sound strategic 

policies and guidelines on major capital expenditures, business strategies, 

plans and policies. 

 (92.9%) 

 

2.) Effectively monitors the key risks areas and performance indicators to 

enable the Company to anticipate and prepare for the possible threats to its 

operational and financial viability. 

 (92.9%) 

 

3.) Regularly monitors the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s 

financial reporting, governance, operations, and information systems, 

including the reliability and integrity of the financial and operational 

information. 

 (85.7%) 

 

4.) Ensures the implementation of the compensation and succession plans and 

professional development programs for employees. 

 (78.6%) 

 

5.) Ensures that the Company is supported by effective process for planning, 

communicating, measuring, governing, delivering quality, and providing for a 

safe work environment. 

 (78.6%) 

 

6.) Delegates effectively to members of the senior management team and 

other officers 

 (85.7%) 

 

IV. Communication/Relationship 

1.) Maintains good interpersonal relationships with the chairman, other board 

members, executives, other employees, and key stakeholders. 

 (71.4%) 

 

2.) Communicates effectively with the stakeholders the Company’s goals, 

objectives, strategies, standards, policies, rules and procedures. 

 (85.7%) 

 

3.) Ensures open communication links with its customers, suppliers, 

contractors, regulators and other agencies of the government and solicits 

feedback from the Company’s stakeholders including employees at all levels as 

input to the direction and operation of the Company. 

 (78.6%) 

 

 

4.) Exercises oversight responsibility over the investor relations program that 

keep the stakeholders informed of the important developments in the 

Company. 

 (85.7%) 
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